
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Jennifer Cunningham, Chair 
Shaun Carey, Vice-Chair 
Cortney Young, Treasurer 
Adam Kramer, Secretary 
Carol Chaplin, Trustee  
Joel Grace, Trustee  
Richard Jay, Trustee 
Kitty Jung, Trustee  
Art Sperber, Trustee 

PRESIDENT/CEO 
  Daren Griffin, A.A.E. 

CHIEF LEGAL COUNSEL 
Ian Whitlock 

BOARD CLERK 
Lori Kolacek 

AGENDA 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
Thursday, September 19, 2024 | 8:00 AM 

Reno-Tahoe International Airport, Reno, NV 
Administrative Offices, Second Floor  

Notice of Public Meeting  
Meetings are open to the public and notice is given pursuant to NRS 241.020. 

This meeting will be livestreamed and may be viewed by the public at the following link: 
Watch on Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82275583396  
Listen by Phone:  Dial 1-669-900-6833  
Webinar ID:         822 7558 3396 

Accommodations 
Members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested 
to notify the Clerk by email at lkolacek@renoairport.com or by phone at (775) 328-6402. Translated 
materials and translation services are available upon request at no charge.   

Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to make public comment may do so in person at the Board meeting, or by emailing 
comments to lkolacek@renoairport.com. Comments received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before 
the meeting will be given to the Board for review and included with the minutes of this meeting. To 
make a public comment during the Zoom meeting, please make sure your computer or device has a 
working microphone.  Use the “Chat” feature to submit a request to speak. When the time comes to 
make public comments, you will be invited to speak. Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes 
per person. No action may be taken on a matter raised under general public comment. 

Posting 
This agenda has been posted at the following locations: 
1. RTAA Admin Offices, 2001 E. Plumb
2. www.renoairport.com 3. https://notice.nv.gov/

Supporting Materials 
Supporting documentation for this agenda is available at www.renoairport.com, and will be available 
for review at the Board meeting.  Please contact the Board Clerk at lkolacek@renoairport.com, or 
(775) 328-6402 for further information.

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/nrs/nrs-241.html
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82275583396
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com
https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meeting-information/agendas-minutes
https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meeting-information/agendas-minutes
mailto:lkolacek@renoairport.com


 
RTAA Board of Trustees – September 19, 2024  Pg. 2 

1.  INTRODUCTORY ITEMS  
 
1.1  Pledge of Allegiance  
1.2  Roll Call  
 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
3.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA (For Possible Action)    
 
4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

 
4.1  August 8, 2024, Board of Trustees meeting 
 
5. PRESIDENT/CEO REPORT  
 
6.  BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND UPDATES 
   
7.   RECOGNITIONS AND ITEMS OF SPECIAL INTEREST  
 
7.1  Great Basin Aviation Boot Camp  
 
8.   CONSENT ITEMS (All consent items may be approved together with a single motion, be 

taken out of order, and/or be heard and discussed individually.) 
  
8.1  Board Memo No. 09/2024-51 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

approval of revised Permanent Committee appointments for fiscal year 2024-2025 
 
8.2 Board Memo No. 09/2024-49 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

Authorization for the President/CEO to approve and ratify a single (1) change order to the 
Equipment Contract for a Class IV Vehicle for the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority’s Airport 
Rescue and Fire Fighting Department, with Rosenbauer Minnesota, LLC, for a net increase 
of $50,205 and a total cost of $1,118,356   

 
9.  INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS  
 
9.1  Board Memo No. 09/2024-50 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

adoption of an Inter-Local Agreement (ILA) with the City of Reno Fire Department to 
provide comprehensive fire protection services to the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority  

 
9.2  New Gen A&B 30% cost estimates (informational)   
 
9.3  Board Memo No. 09/2024-48 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

authorization for the President/CEO to execute a Professional Services Agreement with 
Barich, Inc. for Information Technology Owner Liaison Review Services (ITOLRS) in the 
amount of $471,685 commencing on approval through June 30, 2025   

  



 
RTAA Board of Trustees – September 19, 2024  Pg. 3 

 
9.4  Board Memo No. 09/2024-52 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

approval of the President/CEO Performance Goals and Measures for FY2024-25 
 
10.  TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUESTS  
 
11.  UPCOMING RTAA MEETINGS  
 

DATE MEETING  
10/8/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
10/10/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
11/12/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
11/14/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
12/10/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
12/12/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

 
12.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
13.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
  
 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Jennifer Cunningham, Chair 
Shaun Carey, Vice Chair 
Cortney Young, Treasurer 
Adam Kramer, Secretary 
Carol Chaplin, Trustee  
Joel Grace, Trustee  
Richard Jay, Trustee 
Kitty Jung, Trustee  
Art Sperber, Trustee 

 

 

PRESIDENT/CEO 
  Daren Griffin, A.A.E. 

 
CHIEF LEGAL COUNSEL 

Ian Whitlock 
    

BOARD CLERK 
Lori Kolacek 

--DRAFT-- 
AGENDA 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting  
Thursday, August 8, 2024 | 9:00 AM 

Reno-Tahoe International Airport, Reno, NV 
Administrative Offices, Second Floor  

 
1.  INTRODUCTORY ITEMS  
 
Chair Cunningham called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  Chief Duarte led the Pledge.  Roll 
was taken by the Clerk.   
 
Members Present:  Shaun Carey 

Carol Chaplin 
Jennifer Cunningham 
Joel Grace 
Richard Jay 
Kitty Jung 
Adam Kramer (by Zoom)  
Art Sperber 

    Cortney Young 
 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
Chair Cunningham called for public comment.  There was none.   
 
3.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 
 
Motion: Move to approve the agenda as presented 
Moved by: Kitty Jung 
Seconded by: Art Sperber 
Aye: Trustees Carey, Chaplin, Cunningham, Grace, Jay, Jung, Kramer, Sperber, Young 
Result: Passed unanimously  
 
4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 
4.1  July 11, 2024, Board of Trustees meeting 
 
Chair Cunningham asked if there were any corrections to the Minutes of July 11, 2024.  Hearing 
none, the Minutes were approved as presented.   



 
RTAA Board of Trustees – August 8, 2024  Pg. 2 

5. PRESIDENT/CEO REPORT  
 
CEO Griffin briefed the Board on the following:  
Airport passenger traffic 
Tolles ribbon cutting event  
GTC, NewGen A&B and Loop Road projects 
Cyber Security Meeting in Las Vegas convened by Congressman Amodei 
VIP visits  
Upcoming Burning Man event  
 
6.  BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND UPDATES 
 
Chair Cunningham congratulated Trustee Jay on his election as Vice-President of the RSCVA 
Board of Directors.   
 
7.  INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS  
 
7.1  Board Memo No. 08/2024-43 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

authorization for the President and CEO to negotiate final terms and execute a new 5-
year Commercial Lease Agreement with two 2-year options to extend with Academy 
for Career Education (ACE) for 14,694 square feet of space at the commercial 
building located at 2800 Vassar Street for a minimum contract value of $514,290    

 
This item was presented by Brad Erger, Manager of Properties, and was first heard by the 
Finance & Business Development Committee on August 6, 2024.  Mr. Erger introduced Bob 
Deruse, ACE Director, and Adam Nicely, ACE Principal, who addressed the Board.  After 
discussion, the Board took the following action:   
 
Motion: Authorize the President and CEO or his delegate to negotiate final terms and execute a 
new 5-year Commercial Lease Agreement with Academy for Career Education for 14,694 square 
feet of space at the commercial building located at 2800 Vassar Street 
Moved by: Art Sperber  
Seconded by: Joel Grace 
Aye: Trustees Carey, Chaplin, Cunningham, Grace, Jay, Jung, Kramer, Sperber, Young 
Result: Passed unanimously  
 
7.2  Board Memo No. 08/2024-44 AND PUBLIC HEARING (For Possible Action): Review, 

discussion and potential authorization to conduct a public hearing pursuant to 
Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code concerning the proposed issuance of 
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Nevada Airport System Revenue Bonds in one or 
more series in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $750,000,000   

 
The Clerk was asked to confirm for the record, and did so confirm, that this Notice of Hearing 
was publically noticed.  Chair Cunningham read her opening remarks and Randall Carlton gave a 
brief explanation of what to expect from this, and the following action item.  Chair Cunningham 
opened the public hearing at 9:22 a.m. and members of the public were invited to comment.  



 
RTAA Board of Trustees – August 8, 2024  Pg. 3 

There were none.  The clerk was asked to confirm, and did so confirm, that there were no written 
comments presented for this hearing.  Chair Cunningham closed the public hearing at 9:23 a.m.   
 
7.3   Board Memo No. 08/2024-45 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

adoption of Resolution No. 570 relating to the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority issuance 
of Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2024A (AMT) and Series 2024B (NON-AMT), in 
the combined maximum aggregate principal amount of $275,000,000; authorizing the 
redemption and early payment of all or a portion of the Authority’s outstanding 
Airport System Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2022; approving certain 
documents and other matters related thereto; and providing the effective date hereof    

 
This item was presented by Randall Carlton, Chief Finance and Administration Officer, and was 
first heard by the Finance & Business Development Committee on August 6, 2024.  Prior to the 
presentation, Trustee Jay stated that as he is affiliated with a Wells Fargo division, Wells Fargo 
FiNet, and recused himself from participating in and/or voting on this item.   
 
After discussion, the Board took the following action:   
 
Motion: Move to adopt Resolution No. 570 relating to the issuance of Airport Revenue Bonds 
by the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority of up to $275 million aggregate principal amount, in one or 
more series, to fund certain airport capital improvements under the MoreRNO program, the 
repayment of subordinate RTAA bonds, capitalized interest on the bonds and bond issuance 
costs; and approving certain documents and other matters related thereto 
Moved by: Cortney Young 
Seconded by: Joel Grace 
Aye: Trustees Carey, Chaplin, Cunningham, Grace, Jung, Kramer, Sperber, Young 
Recused:  Trustee Jay 
Result: Passed unanimously  
 
7.4  Board Memo No. 08/2024-46 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

adoption of Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Investment Policy for the Investment of 
Public Funds  

 
This item was presented by Randall Carlton, Chief Finance and Administration Officer, and was 
first heard by the Finance & Business Development Committee on August 6, 2024.  After 
discussion, the Board took the following action:   
 
Motion: Move that the Board adopt the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Investment Policy, as 
revised and effective August 8, 2024 
Moved by: Kitty Jung 
Seconded by: Cortney Young 
Aye: Trustees Carey, Chaplin, Cunningham, Grace, Jay, Jung, Kramer, Sperber, Young 
Result: Passed unanimously  
 
 
 



 
RTAA Board of Trustees – August 8, 2024  Pg. 4 

 
7.5  Presentation of Culture Survey results (non-action item)  
 
This item was presented by Christy Wheeler, Interim Chief People, Culture & Equity Officer.  
Board discussion followed.  No action was required. 
 
7.6  Board Memo No. 08/2024-47 (For Possible Action): Review, discussion and potential 

approval of Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Chair’s Permanent Committee 
Appointments for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

 
Chair Cunningham reviewed the Committee appointments and called for a motion to approve.   
 
Motion: Approve the Chairman’s Permanent Committee appointments for FY2024-2025 
Moved by: Joel Grace 
Seconded by: Art Sperber 
Aye: Trustees Carey, Chaplin, Cunningham, Grace, Jay, Jung, Kramer, Sperber, Young 
Result: Passed unanimously  
 
8.  TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUESTS  
 
Trustee Jung stated she wants to be sure that staff taking steps to ensure good air quality in the 
new headquarters building.  Chair Cunningham congratulated Intan Ardhita, RTAA Financial 
Analyst, on her newly obtained U.S. citizenship.   
 
9.  UPCOMING RTAA MEETINGS  
 

DATE MEETING  
09/10/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
09/12/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
10/8/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
10/10/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
11/12/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
11/14/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
12/10/2024 Finance & Business Development Committee Meeting 

Planning & Construction Committee Meeting 
12/12/2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

 
10.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Chair Cunnigham called for public comment.  There was none. 
 
 
   



 
RTAA Board of Trustees – August 8, 2024  Pg. 5 

11.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
Chair Cunningham adjourned the meeting at 10:19 a.m.   
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Adam Kramer, Secretary  



 
 
 

President/CEO Report 
To: All Board Members  
From: Daren Griffin, President/CEO  
Date:   September 2024   

  
AIR SERVICE DEVELOPMENT 
 
ASD Team 
On July 1, 2024, Trish Tucker, formerly the Manager of Air Service and Community Engagement, moved 
to the MoreRNO Program team as the Tenant Liaison Manager. As a result of this change, ASD 
reclassified the Manager position to a Specialist and changed the reporting structure to the Manager of 
Air Service and Cargo Business Development. On September 23, 2024, Garrett Hintz will join the RTAA as 
an Air Service Specialist. Hintz is a seasoned aviation professional with air service analyst experience at 
Colorado Springs Airport. 
 
Summer Recap 
RNO's passenger traffic surged in June 2024, exceeding all previous months since September 2007. This 
momentum continued into July, setting a record for single-month passenger numbers since April 2007.  
August is on track to exceed last year’s passenger count. In fact, on August 25, RNO shattered its single-
day passenger record with over 10,000 Enplaned Passengers. While historical daily passenger data is 
limited, in terms of available seats, August 25 was the busiest day since August 13, 2005.  With 90,000 
additional seats this summer, preliminary bookings data suggests that RNO will see a significant increase 
in overall passenger traffic compared to last summer. As is expected, airlines will begin adjusting their fall 
capacity starting in September. 
 
July 2024 RNO Passengers  
Reno-Tahoe International Airport (RNO) served 479,858 passengers in July 2024, an increase of 8.3% 
versus the same period last year. In July 2024, RNO was served by 10 airlines to 24 non-stop 
destinations. The total seat capacity increased 12.2% and flights increased 10.7% when compared to 
July 2023. 
 
 



Page 2 of 8 
 

 

 
 
Alaska Airlines (AS) 

• AS will begin twice daily non-stop flights between RNO and Los Angeles, CA (LAX) on October 1.  
• AS will begin non-stop seasonal flights between RNO and San Diego, CA (SAN) on December 19. 

 
Southwest Airline (WN) 

• WN will begin non-stop seasonal flights between RNO and Austin, TX (AUS) on March 6. The airline 
will offer this flight three times a week.  

 



Page 3 of 8 
 

 

 
 
July 2024 RNO Cargo  
RNO handled 8,878,130 pounds of air cargo in July, an increase of 4.3% when compared to July 2023.    
 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
Properties 
 
Burner Express Bus & Burning Man Project 
Use Permits for The Burner Express Bus operation and Burning Man Project’s bike and gear donation 
collection location were issued, using the same location as last year at 1500 Terminal (old air cargo). The 



Page 4 of 8 
 

 
location is a short four-minute walk from the terminal. RTAA arranged for amenities such as vending 
machines (via the vending concession contract), port-a-lets (provided by Burner Express Bus), a covered 
area for the lines (inside one of the warehouse spaces), a secondary Uber/Lyft drop-off/pick-up area to 
reduce walking distances, and a hose to rinse off on their returns (provided by RTAA facilities). 
Arrangements for the return trips included the Burner Gear Give Back, bike donations for the Reno Bike 
Project, and a dumpster for unwanted/abandoned items. 
 
Gaming Industry Days 
Following the successful Gaming Industry Days in April, the RTAA held a second series of meetings with 
gaming entities in August to further discuss and gather insights for the gaming program in New Gen A&B. 
Participants included representatives from casinos, manufacturers, and gaming operators, as well as 
RTAA staff from the Commercial Business, Procurement and MoreRNO teams as well as representatives 
from Paslay Management Group, L.P. (Paslay) concession consultants and the Gensler design team. 
  
Prior to the meetings, exhibits showcasing potential concession and gaming spaces in the future 
concourses were shared with participants, who were asked to propose slot machine layouts, revenue 
projections, and other considerations such as staffing and infrastructure needs. The meetings also served 
as an opportunity for staff to educate attendees on the public procurement process. 
  
Feedback from these meetings will be used by the RTAA, in partnership with Paslay and Gensler, to 
continue planning a comprehensive concession program aimed at enhancing the passenger experience 
and maximizing revenue across the terminal and New Gen A&B. 
 
RTS Land Development 
 
Dermody Properties Phase I Development  
The wall tilt-ups for the first building are nearly complete and the removal of the tilt braces will be start 
at the beginning of September.  Materials for the roof structure have been delivered and estimated install 
to begin the middle of September.  They continue grading for the dock aprons and curbs and will be 
pouring concrete for the dock aprons and curbs within the next two weeks.  
Sewer work along Moya Blvd started and is continuing north to the railroad tracks. Union Pacific Railroad 
will soon commence the replacement of track and the RR crossing infrastructure/electrical will follow that 
work. Additional work along Moya that is occurring is the relocation of an NV Energy pole and fiberoptic 
patch vault as well as the installation of a new storm line. 
 
Dermody Properties Phase II Development  
Dermody, along with its consultants, are compiling the information and documentation required to start 
the FAA review process for their Phase II development. As required by the performance milestone in the 
ground lease, they must submit the FAA environmental request within 6 months of lease execution. The 
deadline is the end of September 2024. The Dermody team has also begun conversation with the local 
utility company entities for site planning purposes. 
 
RNO Land Development 
Air Cargo Development – Southwest Quadrant   
Staff continues to work with AFCO to determine the feasibility of the proposed new air cargo 
development. AFCO has submitted their Master Development Concept plan as required per their Option 
Agreement and has contracted with consultants to assist with the gathering of information for the 
submittal to the FAA to begin their review process. Staff is working with those consultants to 
document/locate the deed and grant documents for the original 100+ separate parcels for the previous 
housing development located on that site. AFCO continues to complete their due diligence on the site to 
include environmental studies. The RTAA will request federal funding for the airfield components of the 
project (connectors and de-icing).   
 



Page 5 of 8 
 

 
OPERATIONS & PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

Department Event 07/2024 07/2023 07/2022 

Joint Actions Aircraft Alerts: ARFF, Ops, Police, Aircom 3 5 3 
 Medicals: ARFF, Ops, Police, Aircom 19 35 27 
Operations Inspections 129 94 65 
 Wildlife Incidents 6 1 4 
Police TSA Checkpoint Incidents 7 23 20 
 Case Numbers Requested 12 7 13 
Terminal Ops Alarm Responses 49 77 295 
 Inspections: Vehicle, Delivery, Employee  928 1161 1191 
Compliance Badge Actions 868 792 786 
ARFF Inspections: Fuelers/Facilities 0/0 3/0 2/0 
Landside Public Parking – Total Revenue $1,525,638 $1,470,341 $1,323,701 
 Public Parking – Total Transactions  44,493 43,270 41,364 
 Public Parking – Average $ Per Transaction $34.29 $33.98 $32.00 
 Shuttle & Bus Trips Through GT 9,397 9,029 8,366 
 Transportation Network Company Trips 37,870 32,968 13,894 
 Taxi Trips Through GT 5,410 5,736 5,865 

 
 
PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
RTAA Annual Environmental Inspections 
In August 2024, staff completed on-site inspections, associated with the RTAA’s Annual Assessment of 
Environmental Compliance, at Reno-Tahoe International Airport and Reno-Stead Airport. Inspections are 
opportunities to identify non-compliance issues and provide guidance to promote environmental and 
regulatory compliance. In addition to tenant facilities, staff also conducts inspections at RTAA Airfield 
Maintenance, Airport Rescue and Firefighting, Building and Maintenance, and Stead Airport facilities. 
Post-inspection letters detailing areas for improvement were sent in late August 2024. There were no 
major discrepancies. 
  
Airport Sustainability Advisory Committee (ASAC) 
The Airport Sustainability Advisory Committee (ASAC) meeting will convene on Thursday, September 19, 
2024. Quarterly informational items include Sustainability & Climate Resiliency Design for New Gen A&B, 
Quarterly Noise Reports, and an update on the Reno-Stead Airport Master Plan. Additionally, Donna 
Walden, founder and president of greenUP!, will provide an update on their partnership with the primary 
RNO dining concessionaire SSP. 
 
For more project updates, please refer to the Monthly Project Status Reports which are posted with 
Planning & Construction Committee meetings agendas.  Click HERE to view those agendas.   
 
 
 
PEOPLE, CULTURE AND EQUITY 
 
Time frame: 8/01/2024 through 8/31/2024 

Open Positions 6 
New Starts 0 
Resignations/Terminations* 1 

https://www.renoairport.com/airport-authority/public-meetings/


Page 6 of 8 
 

 
Promotions  
*Termination refers to an employee leaving under 
any circumstances, good or bad.  

 
The Culture Club sponsored a night at a Reno Ace’s game. Employees were invited to attend “Wolf Pack 
Night” at a Friday night fireworks game against the Las Vegas Aviators. The event was popular, and the 
Culture Club was happy that it sold out quickly. In all, 85 tickets were given out on a first come/first 
served basis.  
 
The Culture Club’s “Re-THRIVE-al” campaign continues. Now on the letter I for “Inspire and Innovate,” 
departments were scheduled to decorate the windows outside the Boardroom in a way that depicts what 
inspires them in their work. With 2 – 3 departments per week, it has been “inspiring” to watch the 
creativity in action!  
 
MARKETING & PUBLIC AFFAIRS 
 
Marketing 
 
Notable metrics from July 16 – August 15 include:  
At the beginning of this fiscal, staff pivoted its strategy to shift paid advertising focus from traditional, 
blanket awareness of nonstop destinations to the narrower target audience of those already planning and 
booking travel. This is reflected in a decrease in impressions, but a significant increase in conversions.  
 
The Delta incentive campaign continues its strong performance, with nearly 1,300 clicks on the static ads, 
and nearly 800 on the display ads this period. Additionally, the Connected TV (Hulu, Netflix etc. ads) 
saturated the market with nearly 380,000 total video completions. These metrics are on track for our 
campaign KPIs. 
 

 



Page 7 of 8 
 

 

 
 
 
Organic Social Media:  
Top performing content includes:  
 

• A post featuring the recent visit from the United States Secretary of Transportation Pete 
Buttigieg, and Senators Cortez Masto and Rosen garnered an 11.45% engagement rate from 
RNO followers.  

• A post celebrating RTAA employee Intan Ardhita achieving her dream of U.S. citizenship earned a 
10.67% engagement rate, 860 impressions on Instagram, and nearly 3,000 impressions on 
Facebook.  

 

 



Page 8 of 8 
 

 
Website: The website saw a 9% increase in sessions and a 6% increase in total and new users. Page 
views also increased by 11%. 
 
Newsletter: The August newsletter featured busy Labor Day and Burning Man travel, the new Burning 
Man exhibition in the depARTures Gallery, and a spotlight on winter travel to the Bay Area. The open rate 
for this month’s newsletter was 74% for the third month in a row.  
  
Media and Public Outreach  
 
The team announced several exciting updates this month, including the successful completion of a $238 
million bond issuance for the MoreRNO program and the busiest single passenger day in nearly 20 years. 
The team also covered Burning Man activities at RNO, ensuring the public and passengers were informed 
about those operations and how they affect travel. 
 
Government Affairs 
 
United States Secretary of Transportation Pete Buttigieg visited RNO accompanied by Senators Cortez 
Masto and Rosen on their way to attend the Tahoe Summit. Secretary Buttigieg received a briefing from 
Board Chair Cunningham and CEO Griffin which focused on the MoreRNO program, with a focus on New 
Gen A&B and the E-CUP. The Secretary was engaged, asked meaningful questions, and seemed to enjoy 
his time in the River Room. This visit required extensive coordination with our Operations & Public Safety 
teams and fortunately all the logistics went smoothly.  
 
On the same day, CEO Griffin and COO Jensen also hosted the Transportation Security Administration 
Administrator David Pekoske for a round table discussion about our collaborations with TSA, our future 
needs and ways we can work together to improve safety and the passenger experience. Congressman 
Amodei also received a tour of the TSA security checkpoint with Administrator Pekoske, as the 
congressman is now the chair of the appropriations subcommittee responsible for the TSA budget. 
 
Staff met with Chris Reilly, who has recently taken on the role of State Infrastructure Coordinator within 
Governor Lombardo’s office. We discussed ways we can partner with the state to support RTAA. 
 
Art 
 
Now that Artown is wrapped up, the team is already working on scheduling holiday performances.  

Staff welcomed new art consultant, Holly Hayden, to RNO for two full days of introductions and 
information sessions on the RTAA’s Arts at the Airport and 1% for public art programs.  

Ninety minutes of exciting airport art updates were packed into the Art Advisory Committee meeting on 
August 22. Members met with Holly Hayden, reviewed designs and timelines with GTC, HQ, and NewGen 
A&B project managers and architects and were briefed on the impending arts solicitations and 
corresponding marketing campaign. 

 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
  10/2024-51 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on October 10, 2024 
 
Subject:  Consideration of approval of revised Permanent Committee appointments for fiscal 

year 2024-2025 
 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the motion stated below. This action will update the 
membership of the Board’s two permanent committees. 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the Board’s regular meeting on August 8, 2024, the Board approved the Chair’s appointments 
for various committees and community liaison positions. Since that time, Board members have 
expressed interest in changing their participation on the two Permanent committees. The Chair 
therefore proposes to amend the membership of these committees as described below. 
 
Bylaw 9140 provides that the Chairperson shall, with approval of the Board, establish Permanent 
Board Committees consisting of at least two members of the Board, but less than the full 
membership of the Board. The Chair is an ex-officio member of any committee of which he/she 
is not a regular member.  The Chair typically appoints 3-4 members to a permanent committee. 
At present there are two Permanent Committees: the Finance and Business Development 
Committee and the Planning and Construction Committee.  These committees hear informational 
items and also make recommendations on whether matters brought before them should be 
advanced for consideration by the full Board. Bylaw 9240 provides that the Treasurer shall also 
serve as the Chair of the Finance and Business Development Committee. 
 
To assure a quorum can be assembled in the absence of a committee member(s), the Chair also 
appoints two alternates to these committees.  When sufficient regular committee members of 
either of these committees are not present for purposes of a quorum, the first alternate will sit as 
a regular committee member with voting rights.  If the first alternate is not available, or if both 
alternates are required for a quorum to be present, the second alternate will also sit as a regular 
committee member with voting rights. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Chair has received additional input from Board members regarding their interest in serving 
on the RTAA Permanent Committees.  After careful consideration of Trustee requests and, 
taking into account their respective backgrounds and experience, the Chair has assigned Trustees 
in Committee positions where they may best serve the mission of the RTAA.  The Committee 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
members outlined below will serve until new appointments are made by the next Chairperson in 
FY 2025-2026. 
 
Chair Cunningham, therefore, recommends the following Permanent Committee appointments 
and seeks the Board’s formal approval: 
 

Finance & Business Development Committee  
Chair:  Cortney Young Alt 1:  Art Sperber 
Vice-Chair:   Richard Jay Alt 2:  Shaun Carey 
Member 1:  Kitty Jung  Ex Officio:  Jennifer Cunningham 
Member 2:  Carol Chaplin  
 
Planning & Construction Committee  
Chair:  Art Sperber Alt 1:  Adam Kramer  
Vice-Chair:  Joel Grace                               Alt 2:  Carol Chaplin 
Member 1:  Shaun Carey  Ex Officio: Jennifer Cunningham 
Member 2:  Cortney Young 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item has no fiscal impact to the RTAA 
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
None 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“Approve the revised Chairman’s Permanent Committee appointments for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025.” 
 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
  09/2024-49 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on September 12, 2024   
 
Subject:  Authorization for the President/CEO to approve and ratify a single (1) change order 

to the Equipment Contract for a Class IV Vehicle for the Reno-Tahoe Airport 
Authority’s Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting Department, with Rosenbauer 
Minnesota, LLC, for a net increase of $50,205 and a total cost of $1,118,356 

 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the motion presented below.  
 
BACKGROUND 
FAA regulations establish requirements for firefighting service equipment at commercial airports 
such as RNO. These regulations assign an “Index” to each airport, depending on factors such as 
the frequency of departures and the size of aircraft providing passenger service. Under these 
criteria the Reno-Tahoe International Airport (RNO) is an Index C airport.  As an Index C airport, 
RNO is required to have at minimum, 2 pieces of ARFF apparatus with at least 1,500 gallons of 
water each (total of 3,000 gallons), 200 gallons of foam each (total of 400 gallons) and 500 lbs. of 
dry chemical extinguishing agent each (total of 1000 lbs.).  The Airport would not “meet Index” 
if one of these vehicles was out of service, and commercial flight operations would cease until the 
required apparatus could be placed back in service. Prudent management requires that RNO avoid 
“dropping Index” by having more than the minimum number of required ARFF vehicles on hand, 
to allow for maintenance or for situations in which a vehicle is committed to an incident.  
 
With these requirements in mind, in spring of 2024 the RTAA went out to bid for the procurement 
of a new 1,500-gallon ARFF apparatus. On June 13th, the RTAA Board of Trustees awarded a 
contract inclusive of one (1) bid alternate to Rosenbauer Minnesota, LLC in the amount of 
$1,068,151.  This new piece of equipment will replace a 2004 Oshkosh Stryker and a 1996 E-one 
Titan. 
 
DISCUSSION  
The process to spec. out this piece of apparatus followed the FAA advisory circular and involves 
the use of a pre-populated form.  Unfortunately, a number of items were inadvertently deleted from 
the prepopulated form which resulted in a piece of equipment that did not include all of the desired 
and required equipment.  The list below gives the full detail but most importantly, the Dry 
Chemical System was left out of the bid specification.  As mentioned above, it is a requirement of 
FAR Part 139 to have a minimum of 500 lbs. of dry chemical extinguishing agent on each piece 
of apparatus to meet index.  This Change Order #1 will add the dry chemical system as well as the 
various components necessary to make this a fully equipped piece of apparatus. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The purchase of this apparatus will be funded through a congressionally directed line item 
(earmark) of $911,140 with the remaining funds ($207,216) to come from RTAA reserves. The 
contract required an initial payment of 25% of the original amount ($267,037.75) at the time of 
board approval, which has been paid.  The remainder ($851,318.25) will be paid upon delivery of 
the apparatus.  Because the estimated delivery date is 550 days from the board’s initial approval, 
RTAA funds will not be required until fiscal year 2026 and will be budgeted accordingly. The 
entirety of the purchase is subject to review and approval by the Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) for compliance with grant requirements including, but not limited to, Buy American 
Certifications and/or waivers 
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
Finance and Business Development Committee 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“Move to authorize the President/CEO to approve and ratify a single Change Orders to the 
Equipment Contract for a Class IV Vehicle for the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority’s Airport Rescue 
and Fire Fighting Department, with Rosenbauer Minnesota, LLC, for a net increase of $50,205 
and a total cost of $1,118,356 subject to Federal Aviation Administration Review and Approval. 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
  09/2024-50 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on September 12, 2024 
 
Subject:  Proposed Adoption of an Inter-Local Agreement (ILA) with the City of Reno Fire 

Department to provide comprehensive fire protection services to the Reno-Tahoe 
Airport Authority 

 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
For the reasons explained in this memorandum, the Staff recommends that the Board authorize 
the President/CEO to execute the attached Inter-Local Agreement with the City of Reno. If 
approved, the ILA will move to the City Council for consideration and final approval. 
 
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
Safety and Security 
Financial Stewardship 
 
BACKGROUND 
The proposal to enter into a comprehensive fire protection service agreement with City of Reno 
is the culmination of a years-long process. In 2020, the Board of Trustees began taking steps to 
transform the RTAA’s fire department from one focused solely on airport rescue firefighting 
(ARFF), to an all-hazard fire department (including elements such as off-airfield structure 
firefighting) on all Airport property. This decision was based in part on the RTAA’s physical 
growth, both on and off the airfield, which has increased the scope of required fire protection 
services. 
 
At the February, 2024 Board Meeting, Cris Jensen, Chief Operations and Public Safety Officer, 
briefed the Bboard on the history and future of fire protection services at the Airport. He laid out 
a proposal to begin discussions with the City of Reno Fire Department to explore whether the 
City could provide services under conditions that would meet the RTAA’s specific requirements 
and the FAA’s rules and regulations.  Mr. Jensen committed to report back to the Board with the 
results of these initial meetings and propose a go- or no-go recommendation. 
 
Based on the positive results of his initial dialog with the City, on June 13, 2024 Mr. Jensen 
again briefed the Board on the evolving need for additional fire protection services, and sought 
Board approval to begin formal negotiations. A Board memorandum supporting this 
recommendation provided the following context: 
 

“With the recent transition of the Reno Airport Fire Department to an all-hazard 
response model, and with the continuing growth of both aviation and non-aviation 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
activity around the airport, staff has been analyzing the best, safest, and most cost-
effective way to provide all the necessary fire services that comes with being an 
all-hazard fire department.  These services include among other things, Airport 
Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF), Structure firefighting capabilities, 
prevention/inspection services, Haz Mat response, confined space entry, high 
angle rescue, swift water rescue and Emergency Medical Services.  One 
opportunity for addressing some or all of these services is the possibility of 
contracting with the City of Reno Fire Department.  The RTAA has already 
entered into agreements with the City of Reno to provide both dispatch services 
for the Airport Fire Department as well as facility/hangar inspections. The City 
has expressed an interest in providing all fire services at the airport. While RTAA 
staff have been willing to consider this option, there are a number of practical and 
legal concerns that require careful consideration.” [Board Memo 06/2024-32] 

 
The Board approved staff’s recommendation, and negotiations with the City moved forward. The 
negotiating team included staff from Operations & Public Safety and People Operations, and 
both internal and external legal advisors. Negotiations began in late June and have continued 
through the week of September 3, 2024. Staff believes that the resulting draft ILA achieves the 
RTAA’s organizational, operational, and financial goals while complying with all FAA rules and 
regulations. 
 
DISCUSSION 
This proposal represents a significant change in an important part of the RTAA’s operational 
structure. The ILA would move fire department infrastructure, personnel, and responsibilities 
from the Authority to the City. This would be accomplished by transferring all fire department 
staff from RTAA employment to City employment; permitting the existing fire station premises 
to be used by the City; clarifying that the City (not the RTAA) will provide all-hazard fire 
protection services for all RTAA property and facilities going forward; and establishing 
mechanisms by which City costs will be reimbursed by the RTAA, subject to various cost-
control measures. 
  
The key components of the proposed ILA may be briefly summarized as follows: 
 

• A series of Recitals describe the parties’ intent on entering into the agreement, 
establishing their mutual goals and objectives, and underlying certain important basic 
principles. Among these are the goals of moving the business of fire protection from the 
RTAA Fire Department to the City, and the limitation on the RTAA’s obligation to pay 
for services “in amount not to exceed the value of services provided.” 

• The ILA will be for a five-year term, subject to automatic renewal, unless terminated 
earlier by either party (Section 3). 

• Section 4 commits the parties to working together to plan and implement the transition of 
the existing two-department system into the future City-only fire department system. 
Included in this section is the concept of the Handover Date, on which key 
responsibilities for fire protection will transfer from the RTAA to the City, as well as 
initial cost estimates. The parties agree to adopt a transition plan within 6 months of the 
agreement’s effective date. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
• Section 5 provides that the existing RTAA fire station will be made available to the City 

for its use in fulfilling its obligations under the agreement.  
• Section 6 describes the RTAA’s obligations, which include the cost of maintaining the 

fire station. The RTAA also retains the responsibility for procuring and replacing 
firefighting vehicles necessary to comply with FAA regulations, and paying for their 
operation and maintenance.  The RTAA would retain ownership of all vehicles, 
equipment, and facilities used by the City to provide the services. 

• Section 7 describes the City’s obligations, beginning with the responsibility to provide 
comprehensive firefighting services, using appropriately trained personnel, and in 
compliance with applicable FAA regulations.  

• Section 8 lays out the mechanism for RTAA’s payments to the City for services 
provided. The City must provide an Annual Plan in advance of each fiscal year, including 
staffing estimates, a budget, and the expected payment due from the RTAA. The Plan is 
subject to RTAA review and approval. Payments will be made on a monthly basis, with 
provision for mid-year consultation in the event of cost overruns, and subject to annual 
true-up to ensure that the RTAA pays no more than the City’s actual costs in providing 
the services, inclusive of reasonable and audited indirect costs.  RTAA retains full 
auditing rights, and the City acknowledges the need for compliance with federal law: 
“The CITY acknowledges and agrees that the AUTHORITY is prohibited by its Grant 
Assurances (as defined herein), and federal law set forth at 49 U.S.C. § 47133, from 
utilizing AUTHORITY funds to compensate or reimburse the CITY for any costs 
unrelated to the Services or the operation of the Airport.” 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As noted above, and in previous Board briefings, a fundamental aspect of the proposed new 
relationship between the RTAA and City is that the contracted fire protection services must be 
provided at cost. The federal grant assurances which govern RTAA’s operations prohibit 
diversion of airport revenue, meaning (in this context) that the RTAA cannot pay for City 
services in amounts that exceed actual costs: they cannot include premiums or subsidies, and 
they must be auditable and justifiable. (These requirements are repeated in the ILA’s recitals and 
in Section 8.)  There are various mechanisms included in the ILA to ensure that RTAA remains 
in compliance with these requirements, including documentation in invoicing, annual auditing 
and true-ups, and clawbacks that allow RTAA to recover funds from the City in the event of 
overpayment. 
 
The ILA currently provides that for the first partial fiscal year, RTAA’s expenditures will not 
exceed a prorated portion of $7,083,791.29.  However, beyond the first partial fiscal year, 
because the RTAA’s expenditures would be tied to the City’s actual costs each year, there is no 
precise dollar value associated with the ILA.  In the absence of such a value, analyzing the fiscal 
impact of the proposed ILA is complicated by a number of factors. First, the RTAA’s costs for 
ARFF fire protection services will almost certainly be greater in the future than in the past, 
regardless of whether those services are provided by an internal fire department (as at present) or 
by an external service provider (such as the City). The RTAA’s costs for ARFF fire protection 
have historically risen at a significant rate. An eight-year summary of fire department costs is 
provided in the table below. Second, as noted above, the RTAA Board has committed to moving 
toward all-hazard fire capability, which will add significant new costs under any management 
scenario. Finally, RTAA staff have not attempted to estimate how costs might differ if provided 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
by external service providers other than the City of Reno.  Staff have attempted to deal with the 
uncertainties of a contract-for-services approach through the measures built into the payment 
mechanisms in Section 8 of the proposed agreement.  
 

 
 
A rough idea of fiscal impact may be obtained by comparing two estimates of costs for the 2024-
25 fiscal year. RTAA staff have estimated that the costs of operating our fire department for FY 
2024-25 amount to approximately $6,454,985. By comparison, the City has estimated the first-
year costs for providing the services contemplated by the draft ILA at $7,083,791.29, which 
includes an estimated indirect (administrative) cost allocation equal to 12% of the direct costs 
and is the basis for the prorated cap on the RTAA’s first partial fiscal year expenditures.  These 
two estimates are not necessarily fully comparable; for example, the City estimate includes costs 
for certain all-hazard services that RTAA does not currently provide or pay for.  However, they 
do indicate that the parties are not far apart in their general expectations of the overall costs of 
the services meant to be covered by the proposed ILA. 
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
None 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“Move to authorize the President/CEO to execute the attached Inter-Local Agreement with the 
City of Reno.” 
 
 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN 
 

THE CITY OF RENO 
ON BEHALF OF 

THE RENO FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

AND 

THE RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
ON BEHALF OF 

THE RENO AIRPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
This Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services (“Agreement”), by and between the Reno-Tahoe 
Airport Authority (“the AUTHORITY”), and the City of Reno (the “CITY,” and together with the 
AUTHORITY, the “Parties”) is executed and becomes effective __________, 2024 (“Effective 
Date”). 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY, through its subsidiary department the Reno Airport Fire 
Department (“RAFD”), currently provides first response emergency air rescue firefighting and 
medical rescue services (the “ARFF Services,” as more completely described on Exhibit F) at the 
Reno-Tahoe International Airport (the “Airport,” as further defined herein);  

WHEREAS, the CITY, through the Reno Fire Department (“RFD”), is capable of providing the 
ARFF Services at the Airport;  

WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY desires to ensure that all risk, all hazard fire service is available at 
the Airport; 

WHEREAS, RFD currently provides all risk, all hazard fire service in and for the City of Reno 
and is capable of providing such services to the Airport (the “All Hazard Services,” as more 
completely described on Exhibit F);  

WHEREAS, in the past, the CITY and RFD have assisted the AUTHORITY with fire and rescue 
missions taking place on, or in close proximity to, the Airport; 

WHEREAS, the Parties have historically been party to a cooperative assistance agreement, 
whereby each Party can request the assistance of the other in the delivery of fire service within their 
respective jurisdictions, and the Parties are therefore accustomed to working together to provide 
fire services;  

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto recognize that both would benefit from centralized communication 
and coordination relative to the delivery of the ARFF Services and All Hazard Services at the 
Airport;  



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

WHEREAS, both the CITY and AUTHORITY desire to provide the highest level of service and 
the most efficient means for the delivery of the ARFF Services and All Hazard Services to the users 
and tenants at the Airport;  

WHEREAS, by assuming the total responsibility for providing the ARFF Services and All Hazard 
Services at the Airport, the CITY would enhance the first response capability at the Airport and 
would provide a depth of resources available to be deployed to the Airport; 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto have determined it to be in the best interests of both for the CITY 
to now provide the ARFF Services previously provided by the AUTHORITY in the manner and 
under terms and conditions specified herein, and for the AUTHORITY to discontinue its own 
provision of the ARFF Services; 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto have determined it to be in the best interests of both for the CITY 
to provide the All Hazard Services; 

WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY also requires certain fire inspection services (the “Inspection 
Services” as more completely described on Exhibit F) of buildings and structures located on 
AUTHORITY property; and 

WHEREAS, the AUTHORITY also requires dispatch and communications services (the “Dispatch 
Services” as more completely described on Exhibit F) to support its emergency response duties;  

WHEREAS, the CITY has historically provided the Inspection Services and Dispatch Services to 
the AUTHORITY pursuant to separate agreements, and the AUTHORITY intends for the CITY to 
continue providing the Inspection Services and Dispatch Services under this Agreement;  

WHEREAS, in this Agreement, the term “Services” shall mean the ARFF Services, All Hazard 
Services, Inspection Services, and Dispatch Services collectively;  

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto intend that this Agreement provide a cost effective and efficient 
means of delivering the Services to the Airport, and the CITY agrees to provide the Services from 
and after the Handover Date (as defined herein) on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement;  

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that the AUTHORITY shall compensate the CITY for such Services, 
in an amount not to exceed the value of the services provided, pursuant to the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement;  

WHEREAS, this Agreement and the AUTHORITY’s payment requirements herein have been 
structured in consideration of the AUTHORITY’s obligations under its federal Grant Assurances 
and federal law regarding the expenditure of Airport revenue; 

WHEREAS, the Parties also wish to provide for the CITY’s use of AUTHORITY property on the 
Airport in connection with the provision of the Services; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the provision of the Services, and 
have authorized the execution of this Agreement through appropriate action by their respective 
governing bodies. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. 

The above stated recitals are true and correct and, by this reference, are 
 incorporated within and made a part of this Agreement. 

Section 2. Airport Boundaries; Description of the Premises. 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the “Airport” means the Reno-Tahoe 
International Airport, inclusive of all property and facilities shown on the 
AUTHORITY’s approved Airport Layout Plan, and includes areas put to both 
aeronautical and non-aeronautical use as well as areas both inside and outside the 
fence dividing the aeronautical operations area from other portions of the Airport. 

As of the Handover Date (defined herein), the AUTHORITY shall make available 
to the CITY certain premises located at the Airport and consisting of the Fire 
Facility and the Ground Space as shown and described on Exhibit A to this 
Agreement (the “Premises”). 

Section 3. Term. 

3.0 The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue 
for an initial period concluding at the end of the fifth full Fiscal Year following the 
Handover Date (the “Initial Term”).  By way of example only, if the Handover 
Date is September 1, 2024, the Initial Term shall end on June 30, 2030.  Thereafter, 
the Agreement shall automatically renew for another five (5) year term in 
perpetuity (each, a “Renewal Term”) unless, no less than six (6) months prior to 
the expiration of the Initial Term or then-effective Renewal Term, as applicable, 
either Party gives written notice to the other that it does not desire to renew the 
Agreement.  This Agreement may also be terminated by either Party under the 
provisions of Sections 15, 16, and 17 herein. 

3.1 For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Fiscal Year” shall mean the twelve-
month period beginning on July 1 each year and ending June 30 of the following 
year. 

Section 4. Handover and Transition. 

4.0 The Parties agree that the AUTHORITY shall continue to provide the ARFF 
Services until a date mutually agreed by the Parties for transition of the obligation 
for performance of the Services to the CITY (the “Handover Date”).  From and 
after the Handover Date, the CITY shall perform the ARFF Services and the All 
Hazard Services pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

4.1 The Parties understand and agree that the Inspection Services are currently being 
provided to the AUTHORITY by the CITY under that certain agreement (the 
“Inspection Agreement”) between the parties dated February 22, 2023. As of the 
Handover Date the terms of this Agreement shall supersede the Inspection 
Agreement and the Inspection Agreement shall be deemed terminated. 

4.2 The Parties understand and agree that the Dispatch Services are currently being 
provided to the AUTHORITY by the CITY under that certain agreement (the 
“Dispatch Agreement”) between the parties dated August 25, 2022. As of the 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

Handover Date the terms of this Agreement shall supersede the Dispatch 
Agreement and the Dispatch Agreement shall be deemed terminated. 

4.3 From and after the Effective Date, the Parties shall meet and confer with the goal 
to agree upon a Transition Plan containing (a) the agreed-upon Handover Date, (b) 
a partial Estimated Annual Payment (calculated in accordance with Exhibit G) for 
the period between the Handover Date and the first day of the next Fiscal Year, (c) 
a partial Annual Plan, and (d) a reasonably detailed plan for handover and/or 
transition of the ARFF Services, Premises, Equipment, Personal Property, as each 
are defined herein, and any AUTHORITY employees to CITY employment.  The 
rest of this Section 4.3 and Exhibit G notwithstanding, the partial Estimated Annual 
Payment shall not exceed a pro rata portion of Seven Million, Eighty Three 
Thousand, Seven Hundred and Ninety One Dollars and Twenty Nine Cents 
($7,083,791.29), with such amount to be calculated based on the remaining days 
in the then-current Fiscal Year (i.e., between the Handover Date and the first day 
of the next Fiscal Year) (the “Maximum Initial Budget”).  Any Transition Plan is 
subject to the AUTHORITY’s reasonable satisfaction that the CITY will be 
prepared to assume performance of the ARFF Services on the Handover Date such 
that there will be no interruption of the ARFF Services at the Airport.  By agreeing 
to the Transition Plan, the CITY represents that it is satisfied that the AUTHORITY 
has provided sufficient information to the CITY regarding FAA and regulatory 
requirements under 14 CFR Part 139 for performance of the Services as of the 
Handover Date.  Upon agreement of the Parties, the Transition Plan shall be added 
to this Agreement as Exhibit H without necessity of amendment.  If the Parties 
have not agreed to the Transition Plan within six (6) months from the Effective 
Date, either Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written 
notice to the other. 

Section 5. Use of Premises and Equipment. 

Beginning on the Handover Date, the CITY shall have exclusive use and 
occupancy of the Premises together with the exclusive use of the Fire Equipment 
and Apparatus (“Equipment”) listed and described in Exhibit B.  Title to the 
Premises and the Equipment shall always remain with the AUTHORITY.  The 
CITY must utilize the Premises and the Equipment only for provision of the 
Services at the Airport and shall not utilize the Premises or the Equipment for any 
other purpose. 

Section 6. Responsibilities of the AUTHORITY: 

6.0 Beginning on the Handover Date, the AUTHORITY will provide the Premises for 
the CITY’s use and occupancy at no rental cost to the CITY.  The CITY shall make 
no alterations to the Fire Facilities or improvements to the Premises without the 
prior written approval of the AUTHORITY, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  The cost of approved alterations or improvements 
requested by the CITY shall be paid solely by the CITY. 

6.1 In connection with provision of the Services, the AUTHORITY will permit the 
CITY to use all personal property including office equipment, appliances and 
furnishings (the “Personal Property”) currently in use at the Premises.  A list of the 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

Personal Property is attached hereto as Exhibit E.  The Personal Property must be 
used by the CITY only at the Airport and only in conjunction with the CITY’s 
performance of the Services.  The AUTHORITY shall maintain ownership of the 
Personal Property.  In reasonable coordination with the CITY, the AUTHORITY 
shall procure any replacement Personal Property at the AUTHORITY’s expense.  
Any new personal property required by the CITY for its use at the Airport will be 
procured by the CITY at its sole expense except for the following items: 
washer/dryer, stove, and refrigerator.  If at any time the Personal Property listed in 
Exhibit E is not desired by the CITY in its performance of the Services, said 
Personal Property shall be returned to the AUTHORITY for its use or disposal.  
Ownership of personal property paid for by the CITY and not reimbursed by the 
AUTHORITY shall be retained by the CITY. 

6.2 During the Term of this Agreement the AUTHORITY shall perform both structural 
and routine maintenance on the Premises at its own expense.  The AUTHORITY 
shall keep the Premises and any improvements made by the AUTHORITY located 
thereon in a good and clean state of repair and preservation, making all necessary 
and proper replacements and repairs as the AUTHORITY deems necessary. 

The AUTHORITY’s responsibility regarding routine maintenance of the Premises 
is as follows: 

A. Utilities. The AUTHORITY is responsible for paying the cost of certain 
utility and other services provided it in connection with the Premises 
which are limited to, water and wastewater service, electrical service, gas 
service, pest control service, and trash removal, including the disposal of 
hazardous materials. 

B. Mechanical Systems. The AUTHORITY is responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of heating, air conditioning and ventilation 
systems. 

C. Plumbing Systems. The AUTHORITY is responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of all plumbing systems. 

D. Electrical Systems. The AUTHORITY is responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of the electrical system. 

E. Fire Alarms and Extinguishing Systems. The AUTHORITY is 
responsible for the procurement, maintenance and repair of all fire alarm 
and extinguishing systems as required by the fire control agency having 
jurisdiction over the Fire Facility. 

F. Landscape and Grounds Maintenance. The AUTHORITY is responsible 
for the maintenance, replacement and/or repair of all landscaping located 
on the Premises and shall provide grounds maintenance. 

G. Exterior and Interior Maintenance and Repair of Structures. The 
AUTHORITY is responsible for all exterior and interior cosmetic 
maintenance for buildings located on the Premises including the repair of 
floors, walls and overheads, painting, carpet maintenance or replacement, 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

hardware repair or replacement, windows and doors maintenance and 
repair and signage maintenance. 

6.3 The AUTHORITY shall not be liable to the CITY for temporary delay or failure to 
furnish any structural repairs or maintenance to be provided in accordance with 
this Agreement when such delay or failure is due to mechanical breakdown or any 
other cause beyond the reasonable control of the AUTHORITY. 

6.4 The AUTHORITY will replace and procure all fire fighting vehicles necessary to 
comply with the FAA Index.  The AUTHORITY will retain the ownership of all 
existing and future firefighting vehicles purchased by the AUTHORITY. 

6.5        Unless otherwise specified in an Annual Plan, the AUTHORITY will provide fuel 
for, the Equipment at its cost.  The AUTHORITY’s obligation hereunder shall not 
include damages to the Equipment caused by the CITY’s negligence or reckless 
conduct.  The CITY shall provide the AUTHORITY with reasonable notification 
of necessary maintenance on the Equipment and permit the AUTHORITY to 
access the Equipment for such purposes.   

6.6 In connection with the Dispatch Services, the AUTHORITY shall: 

A. At its own expense, install and maintain all "exterior" communications 
equipment, including but not limited to vehicle and portable radio 
equipment necessary to communicate with Reno Public Safety Dispatch 
through acceptable frequencies and repeater sites and ensure compliance 
with applicable FCC, federal, state and local laws. 

B. Maintain any and all existing radio equipment outside of the above 
mentioned equipment, scanners, and repeater sites that the AUTHORITY 
determines is essential to its operations. 

C. Notify Reno Public Safety Dispatch of the geographic boundaries of 
AUTHORITY’s jurisdiction and advise immediately, in writing, of any 
changes thereto. 

D. Ensure that all users of AUTHORITY’s services are notified of the proper 
procedure for making emergency and non-emergency requests for services 
through Reno Public Safety Dispatch for proper and prompt handling. 

 

Section 7. Responsibilities of the CITY. 

7.0 As more completely set forth at Exhibit F (“Scope of Services”), from and after 
the Handover Date, and unless otherwise specified in an Annual Plan or elsewhere 
in this Agreement, the CITY shall be responsible for all aspects of providing the 
Services at the Airport, which shall include, but not be limited to, providing all 
staff to perform the Services as CITY employees or contractors and all supplies 
and consumable materials. 

7.1 The CITY shall utilize only personnel trained to provide the Services, in 
accordance with FAA regulations and policies, including all applicable Advisory 
Circulars.  From and after the Handover Date, and except as otherwise specifically 
set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, the CITY shall station and staff personnel 
and equipment at the Airport sufficient to maintain FAA Index at all times.  The 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

AUTHORITY may reasonably request that the CITY verify its compliance with 
FAA Index and all other 14 CFR Part 139 requirements. The AUTHORITY will 
make a good faith effort to notify the CITY of any changes to applicable 
requirements under this Paragraph 7.1.  

7.2 The CITY shall provide the Services at the Airport 24 hours a day, 365 days per 
year, in accordance with the requirements of Exhibit C entitled “Staffing and 
Service Standards for RTIA.” 

7.3 The CITY shall always maintain the Premises in clean condition.  The CITY shall 
handle and use the Equipment and Personal Property with reasonable care. From 
time to time, the CITY may hire outside vendors to provide maintenance or 
cleaning services. The AUTHORITY agrees to pay the cost for such outside 
services provided the AUTHORITY is given advance notice and the opportunity 
to approve of the service. 

7.4 The CITY may store fire suppression agents and any other materials used in 
providing the Services, provided that it strictly adheres to the environmental 
compliance provision as noted in Section 19. 

7.5 The CITY shall ensure that FAA Part 139 response times are within the parameters 
established by the FAA.  From time to time but no less frequently than annually, 
CITY will provide annual reports on aircraft alerts and rescue runs to the terminal 
complex to the Chief Operations and Public Safety Officer of the Airport 
containing substantially the same information as is set forth in Exhibit D. The 
AUTHORITY will make a good faith effort to notify the CITY of any changes in 
the response time requirements. 

7.6 Except as otherwise provided herein or in an Annual Plan, the CITY agrees to 
issue, provide, and maintain all other equipment and materials that it deems 
necessary for delivery of the Services. The CITY shall have sole discretion to 
determine what equipment and materials are necessary in order for the CITY to 
maintain the same level of Services that was provided by the AUTHORITY prior 
to the Handover Date.   

7.7 The CITY shall repair or pay the cost of repair of all damage to the AUTHORITY’s 
property caused by the negligent, reckless or intentional acts or omissions of the 
CITY, its agents, contractors, employees, suppliers or invitees arising as a result of 
the CITY's use or occupancy of the Premises or provision of the Services.  
Expenses associated with this provision are not reimbursable under this 
Agreement. 

7.8 The CITY shall at all times comply with (i) all federal, state, and local statutes, 
ordinances, regulations, rules, policies, Advisory Circulars, and guidance 
applicable to the CITY’s use and occupancy of the Premises and provision of the 
Services, and (ii) all Airport Rules and Regulations which now exist or may 
hereafter be promulgated by the AUTHORITY. 

7.9 The CITY self-insures under a funded program of self-insurance for Public 
Liability, Auto Liability and Workers Compensation Insurance. The CITY will 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

provide full casualty, liability, personal property and workers compensation 
insurance, under said self-insurance program.  The CITY agrees to defend the 
AUTHORITY in all suits arising out of the Services.  Any expenses associated 
with this provision are not reimbursable by the AUTHORITY, except for workers 
compensation premiums as part of the Actual Annual Payments. 

7.10 Any fines, penalties, or court-ordered payments incurred by the CITY as a result 
of its use and occupancy of the Premises or provision of the Services are not 
reimbursable expenses to be paid by the AUTHORITY. 

7.11 CITY agrees that its employees will conduct no business unrelated to the Services 
or use the Premises for such activities, whether individually or on behalf of the 
CITY. 

Section 8. Annual Plan, Fees, Adjustments, Books of Accounting, Audit and Budget. 

The AUTHORITY or any successor organization will compensate the CITY for 
the Services as follows: 

8.0 No later than one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to the beginning of each 
Fiscal Year, the CITY shall present to the AUTHORITY a detailed operating plan 
(the “Annual Plan”) for the Services as described in Exhibit F for the upcoming 
Fiscal Year, including proposed staffing, a budget (including but not limited to any 
proposed capital expenditures to be made by the AUTHORITY in support of the 
Services), and an estimate of the annual payment due from the AUTHORITY to 
the CITY in consideration of the Services for the upcoming Fiscal Year 
(“Estimated Annual Payment”), calculated in accordance with Exhibit G.  The 
Annual Plan and statement of the Estimated Annual Payment must be accompanied 
with documentation and line-item breakdowns for each component of the 
Estimated Annual Payment to the AUTHORITY’s reasonable satisfaction.  The 
Annual Plan shall be subject to the AUTHORITY’s review, comment, and written 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Any other provision of this 
Agreement notwithstanding, it shall be reasonable for the AUTHORITY to deny 
approval of the Annual Plan if the CITY proposes to staff the Services with 
additional personnel beyond a level reasonably necessary to provides the Services, 
provided that the AUTHORITY shall give sufficient consideration to the need to 
account for staff turnover, overtime, vacations, personal leave, and other absences.  
Upon such AUTHORITY approval, the Annual Plan and the Estimated Annual 
Payment shall be effective for the subsequent Fiscal Year.  If the AUTHORITY has 
not approved a new Annual Plan by the first day of a given Fiscal Year, the previous 
Annual Plan shall remain in effect until the AUTHORITY has approved a new 
Annual Plan.  Upon mutual agreement, the Parties may amend the then-current 
Annual Plan and Estimated Annual Payment to account for necessary or requested 
changes to the Scope of Services. 

8.1 In connection with the Services as described in Exhibit F, each month during the 
term of this Agreement, the AUTHORITY shall pay the CITY for the actual, direct 
costs incurred by the City for personnel expenses (including wages, benefits, and 
overtime) and supplies during the preceding month plus one-twelfth (1/12) of the 
estimated administrative support costs calculated pursuant to Item D of Exhibit G 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

(each, a “Monthly Payment”).  Each Monthly Payment shall be made to the CITY 
no later than thirty (30) days following the AUTHORITY’s receipt of an invoice 
from the CITY with documentation and line-item breakdowns for each component 
of the Monthly Payment to the AUTHORITY’s reasonable satisfaction.  The 
CITY’s invoice for the sixth month of each Fiscal Year shall also include a year-
to-date statement showing all the expenses associated with providing the Services 
(including deductions or exclusions made in computing the fees associated with 
providing the Services) and the AUTHORITY’s Monthly Payments made to date, 
and a comparison to the Estimated Annual Payment.  If the AUTHORITY’s first 
six Monthly Payments exceed or are projected to exceed Fifty Five Percent (55%) 
of the Estimated Annual Payment, the CITY and the AUTHORITY shall meet and 
confer and take good faith efforts to reduce expenditures on the Services. 

8.2 No later than the Handover Date, CITY shall create a separate and distinct cost 
center sufficient to comply with FAA and AUTHORITY requirements (the 
“Airport Fire Services Cost Center”) to track all costs and expenses of providing 
the Services and revenue realized from the AUTHORITY’s Monthly Payments.  
The CITY shall include the Airport Fire Services Cost Center as part of the CITY’s 
general government audit process and cost allocation plan.  The CITY shall keep 
and make available to the AUTHORITY upon its request, true and complete 
records and accounts of all the CITY’s expenses and income associated with 
providing the Services.  The CITY shall maintain all records in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

8.3 The Parties agree that the Monthly Payments are based in part on estimates and are 
subject to an annual true-up.  The Parties further agree that the AUTHORITY is 
responsible only for the costs incurred by the CITY for Services actually provided 
to the AUTHORITY at the Airport under this Agreement during the applicable 
Fiscal Year (the “Actual Annual Payment”).  No later than ninety (90) days after 
the conclusion of each Fiscal Year, the CITY shall calculate the Actual Annual 
Payment in the manner set forth on Exhibit G and provide the AUTHORITY with 
documentation reasonably sufficient to support such calculations.  If the Actual 
Annual Payment exceeds the total Monthly Payments the AUTHORITY has 
already made for a given Fiscal Year, the AUTHORITY shall immediately remit 
the difference to the CITY.  If the total Monthly Payments the AUTHORITY has 
already made exceeds the Actual Annual Payment for a given Fiscal Year, the CITY 
shall apply a credit, equal to the difference, against the AUTHORITY’s subsequent 
Monthly Payments until such credit is extinguished.  The rest of this Section 8.3 
and Exhibit G notwithstanding, the AUTHORITY’s Actual Annual Payment 
obligation for the time between the Handover Date and the first day of the next 
Fiscal Year shall not exceed the Maximum Initial Budget. 

8.4 The CITY shall keep and preserve all records relating to its performance of the 
Agreement for at least six (6) years from the date of the most recent Monthly Payment 
made by the AUTHORITY. 

8.5 The AUTHORITY shall maintain full, true and complete copies of all records 
related to this Agreement as are necessary to maintain by law and shall retain such 
records for no less than the period of time set forth under Nevada law.  In the event 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

there is an audit of such records scheduled or in progress, the retention period shall 
be extended for a period reasonably necessary to complete the audit or to complete 
any administrative or judicial litigation which may ensue. At all times, the CITY 
shall have the right, through its representatives and at its own expense, to review 
and/or audit all of the records of the AUTHORITY related to this Agreement, so 
long as the CITY provides reasonable notice to the AUTHORITY. 

8.6  At all times, the AUTHORITY shall have the right, through its representatives and 
at its own expense, to audit all of the records of the CITY’s provision of the 
services under this Agreement, so long as the AUTHORITY provides reasonable  
notice to the CITY provided, however, that in the event the FAA requests 
documents within a specific timeline the CITY will comply with the timeline set 
by the FAA.  If the audit establishes that there was any error in accounting for the 
operating expenses associated with the services provided under this Agreement, 
such error(s) will be corrected within 30 days of the date such error(s) is identified.  
Any required additional payment or credit, as applicable, will be applied on the 
next Monthly Payment(s) until the discrepancy is resolved. 

8.7 The CITY agrees to cooperate with the AUTHORITY in any preparation and/or 
maintenance of records as may be required in connection with the Services by the 
FAA or any another governmental entity with regulatory oversight of the Airport.  
This includes, but shall not be limited to, personnel training records, financial 
records, equipment inspection and/or maintenance logs (for any equipment 
maintained by the CITY), and staff shift logs and/or duty rosters.  The CITY shall 
make such records available to the AUTHORITY, the FAA, or such other 
regulatory entities as may be required by law or audit, provided, however, that 
nothing in this Agreement shall waive any right or privilege held by either Party to 
production or disclosure hereunder. 

8.8 The CITY acknowledges and agrees that the AUTHORITY is prohibited by its 
Grant Assurances (as defined herein), and federal law set forth at 49 U.S.C. § 
47133, from utilizing AUTHORITY funds to compensate or reimburse the CITY 
for any costs unrelated to the Services or the operation of the Airport.  The CITY, 
with reasonable assistance from the AUTHORITY, shall use its best efforts to 
ensure that no impermissible costs are charged to the CITY through the Actual 
Annual Payment.  If the FAA determines that the AUTHORITY has paid funds to 
the CITY in violation of federal law and/or the AUTHORITY’s Grant Assurances, 
the CITY agrees to reasonably cooperate with the AUTHORITY in resolving such 
violation, which may include, but shall not be limited to, repayment or credit to the 
AUTHORITY for impermissible payments. 

Section 9. Access To Premises / Relocation of Premises. 

9.0 The AUTHORITY may, at any time in its sole discretion, close, relocate, 
reconstruct, change, alter or modify all presently designated means of ingress and 
egress to and from the Premises, either temporarily or permanently; provided, 
however, that a reasonably convenient and adequate alternative means of ingress 
and egress to and from the Premises are made available to the CITY. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

9.1 The AUTHORITY reserves the right to relocate the CITY to a similar location at 
any time during the Term of this Agreement. The necessity of such relocation shall 
be determined exclusively by the AUTHORITY at its sole discretion and cost. 

Section 10. Surrender of the Premises by CITY; Winding Up of Services. 

10.0 At the expiration of the Term of this Agreement or at any earlier termination, the 
CITY will surrender the Premises in a good state of repair and condition to the 
AUTHORITY, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

10.1 All buildings, fixtures and other improvements built on, or made to, the Premises 
by the CITY shall remain on the Premises and shall become the exclusive property 
of the AUTHORITY immediately upon the termination of this Agreement. Upon 
surrender of the Premises, the CITY shall remove all equipment, trade fixtures and 
personal property belonging to it that have not assumed the characteristics of a 
permanent fixture.  The CITY shall not remove any Equipment, or any other 
property owned by the AUTHORITY, regardless of whether the CITY was 
permitted the use of such Equipment or Personal Property during the Term of this 
Agreement.  Any and all property not removed immediately by CITY shall, at the 
option of the AUTHORITY, become the property of the AUTHORITY at no cost 
to the AUTHORITY. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties, any damage to the 
AUTHORITY’s property caused by the removal of any of the CITY’s equipment, 
trade fixtures or personal property shall be repaired by the CITY at its sole expense 
within a reasonable time following the removal. 

10.2  CITY shall not remove or demolish, in whole or in part, any improvements placed 
upon the Premises or Equipment by CITY during the Term without the prior 
written consent of the AUTHORITY, which may at its discretion, condition such 
consent upon the obligation of CITY to replace the same by an improvement 
specified in such consent. 

10.3 In the event the CITY continues to use or occupy the Premises after the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement, such continuation shall not be interpreted to 
operate as a renewal of this Agreement but shall be deemed to be only a tenancy at 
sufferance continuing on a month-to-month basis.  In such case, the AUTHORITY 
may terminate such month-to-month tenancy upon thirty (30) days written notice 
to the CITY.  If the CITY remains in possession of the Premises after expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, the CITY shall be liable to the AUTHORITY for 
the fair market value (“FMV”) rent of the Premises for the period of such 
occupancy.  The FMV rent shall be the AUTHORITY’s then-effective rental rate 
for reasonably similar nonaeronautical facilities at the Airport, as applied to the 
square footage of the Premises. 

10.4 Within fourteen (14) days of either Party giving notice to the other of its intent to 
terminate this Agreement (including but not limited to any notice of non-renewal), 
the Parties shall meet and confer to discuss a transition of the Services from the 
CITY to the AUTHORITY or the AUTHORITY’s designee prior to or upon 
termination or expiration of the Agreement.  Any notice of non-renewal or 
termination notwithstanding, the CITY shall continue to provide the Services until 
any agreed-upon transition date or the expiration or termination of the Agreement, 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

whichever is later.  The CITY shall ensure that there is no interruption of the 
Services during any period prior to the AUTHORITY’s resumption of the Services.  
Upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement or within a reasonable period 
thereafter, the CITY shall provide a final accounting of the Actual Annual Payment 
due from the AUTHORITY, which shall be reconciled against prior Monthly 
Payments made for the applicable Fiscal Year. 

Section 11. Indemnification. 

11.0  To the extent limited in accordance with the Nevada State Constitution and  NRS 
41.0305 to NRS 41.039, the AUTHORITY shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the CITY from and against any and all liabilities, claims, losses, lawsuits, 
judgments, and/or expenses, including attorney fees, arising either directly or 
indirectly from any act or failure to act by the AUTHORITY or any of its officers 
or employees, which may occur during, or which may arise out of the performance 
of this Agreement. To the extent limited in accordance with the Nevada State 
Constitution and NRS 41.0305 to NRS 41.039, the CITY shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless the AUTHORITY from and against any and all liabilities, 
claims, losses, lawsuits, judgments, and/or expenses, including attorney fees, 
arising either directly or indirectly from any act or failure to act by CITY or any of 
its officers or employees, which may occur during or which may arise out of the 
performance of this Agreement. The CITY will assert the defense of sovereign 
immunity as appropriate in all cases, including malpractice and indemnity actions. 
The CITY’s indemnity obligation for actions sounding in tort is limited in 
accordance with the provisions of NRS 41.035 or other applicable provisions or 
limitations. 

11.1 The Parties’ respective environmental indemnity obligations shall be governed by 
Section 19. 

11.2 This Section 11 shall survive the term of this Agreement for actions or omissions 
which occurred during the term of this Agreement, whether such term expires 
naturally by the passage of time or is terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions 
of this Agreement. 

11.3 It is expressly agreed that neither Party shall indemnify, defend, or hold the other 
harmless for events, occurrences or conditions which took place prior to the 
Effective Date nor any assume liability or responsibility for the same. 

11.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be constructed to be a waiver of any of 
the Parties’ sovereign immunity, any individual’s qualified immunity, or any other 
immunity or exemption from liability provided for by law. 

11.5 If the AUTHORITY is found to be liable for any FAA, TSA, or other civil penalty 
arising in whole or in part from the CITY’s negligence or recklessness in 
performance of the Services or operations on the Airport, the CITY shall be liable 
to the AUTHORITY for the full amount of any such penalty. 

Section 12. Notices. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

Whenever any notice is required by this Agreement to be made, given or 
transmitted to the Parties hereto, such notice shall be deemed to have been given 
if enclosed in an envelope with sufficient postage attached, and sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested to insure delivery, and deposited in the United States 
mail addressed to: 

RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY: 

Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority 
Attn: RTIA CEO 
2001 E. Plumb Lane 
Reno, Nevada 89502 

 

CITY OF Reno, Nevada: 

Reno Fire Department  
Attn: Fire Chief 
P.O. Box 1900 Reno, Nevada 89505 
 
Reno City Attorney 
P.O. Box 1900 Reno, Nevada 89505 
 

Section 13. Severability. 

In the event any covenant, condition or provision of this agreement is held to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination of invalidity 
will not materially prejudice either the AUTHORITY or the CITY as to their 
respective rights or other obligations contained in the valid covenants, conditions 
or provisions of this Agreement that shall remain and continue in full force and 
effect. 

Section 14. Non-Waiver. 

A waiver by either Party of any of the provisions, conditions, or covenants herein 
contained shall not be deemed by the other Party at any time thereafter to be a 
waiver of the same or any other provision, condition, or covenant herein contained, 
or to be a waiver of the requirement for the strict and prompt performance thereof. 
No notice by either Party is required to restore or revive any right, power, remedy, 
privilege or option following a waiver by either Party of any requirement, 
obligation or default of the other. No, right, power, remedy, privilege or option of 
either Party shall be construed as being exhausted or discharged by the exercise 
thereof on more than one occasion. 

Section 15. Default Termination by the AUTHORITY. 

Subject to Section 17, the AUTHORITY at its option may declare this Agreement 
terminated in its entirety and exercise all right of re-entry to the Premises if the 
CITY violates any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 16. Default Termination by CITY. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

Subject to Section 17, the CITY at its option may declare this Agreement 
terminated in its entirety and vacate the Premises without penalty if the 
AUTHORITY violates any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 17. Time of Termination for Default. 

No termination based on an event of default declared by either Party shall be 
effective unless and until thirty (30) days have elapsed after written notice of the 
termination is received by the other Party specifying when such termination shall 
take effect and detailing the specific grounds of the default. No termination shall 
be effective if such default shall have been cured during such thirty (30) day period, 
nor shall such termination be effective if correction of the default is commenced 
within said thirty (30) days and completed as promptly as reasonably practicable. 

 Section 18. Termination of Agreement For Reasons Other Than Default. 

This Agreement may be terminated upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events: 

A. If any part of the Premises that is vital to the CITY in its operation are 
taken or condemned under power of eminent domain by any governmental 
authority during the Term of this Agreement and the AUTHORITY is 
unable to provide replacement Premises suitable to the CITY.  The CITY 
shall have no claim or interest in or to any award of damages for the taking 
of the AUTHORITY’s ownership interest in any portion of the Premises 
or any improvements located thereon that are wholly owned by the 
AUTHORITY. 

B. If the Premises cannot be used for the uses contemplated by this 
Agreement for reasons of force majeure, as defined in Section 26 for at 
least thirty (30) consecutive days, and the Parties hereto cannot agree on 
terms and conditions necessary for the continuance of this Agreement 
within a ninety (90) day period immediately following the thirty (30) day 
period of nonuse, the CITY may cancel this Agreement. 

C. The inability of the CITY to use the Premises for a period in excess of 
ninety (90) days, because of the issuance of any order, rule, or regulation 
by the United States or an instrumentality thereof preventing the CITY 
from operating at the Premises for cause or causes not constituting a 
default under this Agreement. 

D. The assumption by the United States or an instrumentality thereof of the 
operation, control or use of the Airport or a substantial part thereof in such 
a manner as to substantially restrict the CITY for a period of at least sixty 
(60) days from providing the Services at the Airport. 

E. The withdrawal or cancellation by the United States or an authorized 
instrumentality thereof of the right of regularly scheduled airlines to 
operate at the Airport. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

F. The issuance by any court of competent jurisdiction of an injunction 
restraining the use of the Airport or the Premises if said injunction shall 
remain in force for more than sixty (60) days. 

Section 19. Environmental Compliance. 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Environmental Laws” means all 
Federal, State of Nevada and local statutes, ordinances, regulations and rules 
relating to environmental quality, health, safety, contamination and clean-up, as 
they currently exist or may exist in the future, including, without limitation, the 
Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.; the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §1251 et 
seq., the Water Quality Act of 1987; the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and 
Rodenticide Act (“FIFRA”), 7 U.S.C. §136 et seq.; the Marine Protection, 
Research, and Sanctuaries Act, 33 U.S.C. §1401 et seq.; the Noise Control Act, 42 
U.S.C. §4901 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), 42 
U.S.C. §6901 et seq., as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments 
of 1984; the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §300f et seq.; the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 
U.S.C. §9601 et seq., as amended by the Superfund Amendments and 
Reauthorization Act, and the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know 
Act, and the Radon Gas and Indoor Air Quality Research Act; the Hazardous 
Material Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.; the Toxic Substance Control 
Act (“TSCA”), 15 U.S.C. §2601 et seq.; the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 
29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq; and all State environmental protection, superlien and 
environmental clean-up statutes, with implementing regulations and all local laws, 
regulations and ordinances insofar as they are equivalent or similar to the Federal 
laws recited above or purport to regulate Hazardous Materials, and judicial 
interpretations of each of the foregoing. 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Hazardous Materials” means and 
includes any materials, substances, chemicals, or elements in any physical state 
(liquid, solid, gaseous/vapor) that are prohibited, limited, or regulated by 
Environmental Laws, or any other substances, chemicals, materials, or elements 
that are defined as “hazardous” or “toxic,” under Environmental Laws, or that are 
known or considered to be harmful, hazardous, or injurious to human health or 
safety or the environment. 

CITY must comply with and adhere to all Environmental Laws in its performance 
of the Services and occupancy of the Premises. 

To the extent required by Environmental Law, CITY shall maintain an inventory 
of Hazardous Materials stored or used by it at the Premises and any Airport 
facilities and property which inventory shall be available for inspection by the 
AUTHORITY.  CITY shall provide the AUTHORITY copies of such inventory 
and Safety Data Sheets upon written request by the AUTHORITY.   

CITY shall not store, use, treat, or dispose of any Hazardous Materials at the 
Premises or any Airport facilities and property except where such use, storage, use, 
treatment or disposal is in compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

CITY shall undertake such steps to remedy and/or remove any Hazardous 
Materials and any other environmental contamination that arises out of CITY’s 
performance of the Services or use of the Premises or the Airport.  Any such 
remediation shall be in a manner that is satisfactory to the AUTHORITY, in its 
reasonable discretion, and in accordance with Environmental Laws.  Such work 
shall be performed at CITY’s expense.  Upon reasonable written notice to Airline, 
the City may review and inspect all such work at any time using consultants and 
representatives of its choice at Airline’s cost and expense, provided that the City’s 
review and inspection does not unreasonably interfere with Airline’s remediation 
efforts.  If CITY fails to commence and/or fails diligently to conduct such 
remediation, CITY shall be deemed in default of this Agreement and the 
AUTHORITY may, but shall not be required to, conduct the work at CITY’s sole 
expense. 

CITY hereby indemnifies and agrees to defend and hold harmless the 
AUTHORITY from all costs, claims, demands, actions, liabilities, complaints, 
fines, citations, violations, attorney’s fees, consultant’s fees, or notices of violation 
arising from or attributable to: (i) a presence or release of Hazardous Materials into 
the environment caused by CITY at the Premises or any Airport facility or property, 
or the subsurface, waters, air, or ground thereof, in excess of levels allowable by 
Environmental Laws or the violation of any Environmental Laws due to CITY’s 
management, control, authorization, handling, possession, or use of Hazardous 
Materials at the Airport; (ii) any breach by CITY of any of its warranties, 
representations, or covenants in this Section; (iii) CITY’s remediation or failure to 
remediate Hazardous Materials as required by this Agreement.  CITY’s obligations 
hereunder will survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement, and will 
not be affected in any way by the amount of or the absence in any case of covering 
insurance or by the failure or refusal of any insurance carrier to perform any 
obligation on its part under insurance policies affecting Airport or any part thereof, 
except that, in the event that AUTHORITY recovers funds from insurance carriers 
or any third-party in connection with claims associated with (i), (ii), or (iii) above, 
AUTHORITY may not recover the same funds from CITY.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CITY shall have no indemnification obligation 
under this Section for any costs, claims, demands, actions, liabilities, complaints, 
fines, citations, violations or notices of violation arising from or attributable to any 
release of Hazardous Materials in, on or under the Premises or the Airport prior to 
the Handover Date or not caused by CITY, except to the extent materially 
exacerbated by the CITY, or otherwise if CITY’s use, operation or occupancy of 
the Premises or provision of the Services fails to comply with Environmental 
Laws. 

Section 20. Security. 

CITY, its employees, agents and representatives shall comply with all security 
measures contained in the Airport Security Plan and regulations of the 
Transportation Security Administration.  If CITY, its employees, agents and 
representatives fail or refuse to comply with said measures and such non-
compliance results in monetary penalty being assessed against the AUTHORITY, 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

CITY shall solely be held responsible and shall reimburse the AUTHORITY in the 
full amount of any such monetary penalty. 

CITY’s employees, requiring access to the Premises, shall be provided with an 
identification badge issued by the AUTHORITY and shall be required to keep and 
prominently display the identification badge at all times when involved with the 
delivery of the Services outlined in this Agreement. 

Section 21. Signage. 

CITY shall not permit any signs or other advertisement, except those approved 
prior to posting in writing by the AUTHORITY, to be maintained upon the 
Premises or upon the exterior of any fixtures, improvement or appurtenances 
thereto. 

Section 22. Federal Government's Emergency Clause; Subordination to Grant 
Assurances and Required Federal Provisions. 

All provisions of this Agreement shall be subordinate to the rights of the United 
States of America to operate all of the Airport or any part thereof during time of 
war or national emergency. Such rights shall supersede any provisions of this 
Agreement inconsistent with the operations of the Airport by the United States of 
America. 

This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future 
agreements between the AUTHORITY and the United States of America relative 
to the operation and maintenance of the Airport, the terms and execution of which 
have been or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure or 
reimbursement to the AUTHORITY of federal funds for the development of the 
Airport (“Grant Assurances”).  In the event that this Agreement, either on its own 
terms or by any other reason, conflicts with or violates any such Grant Assurances, 
the AUTHORITY has the right to amend, alter, or otherwise modify the terms of 
this Agreement in order to resolve such conflict or violation, including but limited 
to termination of the Agreement. 

CITY agrees to comply with the Required Federal Provisions attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit I. 

Section 23. Inspection. 

CITY agrees that the AUTHORITY shall have the right to enter any part of the 
Premises at reasonable or necessary times for the purpose of inspection, protection, 
or exercising any right under this Agreement. Whenever possible, prior notification 
will be provided. 

Section 24. No Individual Liability. 

No member, officer, agent, director, or employee of the AUTHORITY or CITY 
shall be charged personally or held contractually liable by or to the other Party 
under the terms or provisions of this Agreement or because of any breach thereof 
or because of its or their execution or attempted execution. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

Section 25. Avigation Rights. 

The AUTHORITY reserves unto itself, its successors, and assigns for the use and 
benefit of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace 
above the surface of the Airport, including the Premises, for navigation or flight in 
the said airspace for landing on, taking off from, or operating at the Airport. 

Section 26. Force Majeure. 

Neither the AUTHORITY nor the CITY shall be deemed to be in breach of this 
Agreement if either Party is prevented from performing any obligations required 
of it hereunder by reason of strikes, boycotts, shortages of materials, labor disputes, 
pandemic, embargoes, acts of God, acts of public enemy, acts of superior 
governmental authority, floods, riots, foreign or civil wars, rebellion, sabotage by 
third parties, or any other similar circumstances for which it is not reasonably 
responsible and which is not within its control. 

Section 27. Incorporation of Exhibits. 

All exhibits and attachments referred to in this Agreement or in any duly executed 
amendment hereto are intended to be and are hereby specifically made a part of 
this Agreement. The exhibits attached hereto to the extent not completed at the 
time of execution hereof, shall conform substantially to the description thereof 
contained on each exhibit page and may be supplied by the Parties. 

Section 28. Radon Gas. 

Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has accumulated in a 
building in sufficient quantities, may present health risk to persons who are 
exposed to it over a period of time. Levels of radon that exceed federal and state 
guidelines have been found in buildings in Nevada. Additional information 
regarding radon and radon testing may be obtained from the county public health 
unit. 

Section 29. Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors 
and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

Section 30. Section Headings. 

Section Headings are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, 
and in no way govern, define, limit, modify or describe the scope, meaning or 
intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

Section 31. Governing Law. 

This Agreement is to be read and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Nevada and the County of Washoe. The Parties hereto agree that any court 
of appropriate jurisdiction presiding in Washoe County, Nevada shall be the forum 
for any actions brought hereunder. 

Section 32. Entire Agreement. 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

This Agreement, which includes the Exhibits and attachments hereto, constitutes 
the entire agreement by and between the Parties hereto concerning the Services 
and the Premises. No statement, representation, writing, understanding, or 
agreement made by either Party, or any representative of either Party, which are 
not expressed in this Agreement shall be binding. All changes, additions, 
amendments to, or modifications of this Agreement or any of its terms, provisions, 
and conditions shall be binding only when made in writing and signed by the 
authorized officer, agent, or representative of each of the Parties hereto.  

  



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed this  _ day of  , 2024. 

 
CITY OF RENO RENO TAHOE AIRPORT 

AUTHORITY 
 

BY:   BY:    
Hillary Schieve, Mayor  

 
DATE:   DATE:    

 
 
 

ATTEST:   

BY:     
   City Clerk  

 
DATE:    

 
 

 

RENO FIRE DEPARTMENT  

 
BY:        

   David Cochran, Fire Chief      
 

DATE:     
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

BY:    BY:    
  
 

NAME:   NAME:    
Deputy City Attorney Legal Counsel, RTAA 

 
DATE:   DATE:    
 



 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Equipment Inventory (By Vehicle and/or Location) 
 

Brush 90 Inventory 
Item Number 

R1 Compartment 
Hose  
1.75", 10' fill hose 2 
1.75", 10' stinger line w/check valve 1 
2.5", 10' Fill hose 1 
3", 10' Fill hose 1 
1" NPSH, 100' rolled hose 9 
1.5 NH, 100' rolled hose 5 
Adapter  
1" NPSH-F to 1" NH-M 1 
1" NH-F to 1" NPSH-M 1 
1.5" NPSH-F to 1.5" NH-M 1 
1.5"NH-F to 1.5" NPSH-M 3 
Icreasers  
.75" NH-F to 1" NPSH-M 2 
1" NPSH-F to 1.5"NH-M 1 
Couplings  
1" NPSH, Double Female 4 
1" NPSH, Double Male 4 
1.5" NH, Double Female 5 
1.5" NH, Double Male 5 
Reducer/Adapter  
1"NPSH-F to .75" NH-M 13 
1.5" NH-F to 1"NPSH-M 12 
2"NPSH-F to 1.5" NH-M 0 
2.5" NPSH-F to 1.5" NH-M 4 
2.5" NH, Double Female 2 
2.5" NH, Double Male 2 
Hydrant gate valves 2 
Reducers  
1.5"NH-F to 1" NH-M 1 
2.5"NH-F to 1.5" NH-M 4 
Tees  



 

EXHIBIT B 

1" NPSH-F x 1"NPSH-M x 1"NPSH-M, cap 3 
1.5" NH-F x 1.5"NH-M x 1"NPSH-M, cap 7 
1.5"NH-F x 1.5"NH-M x 1" NPSH-M, valve 4 
Valves  
1.5"NH-F, Automatic check and Bleeder 1 
1" NPSH, Shut Off  1 
1.5"NH, Shut Off 2 
Foot, w/strainer 1 
Ejector  
1'NPSH x 1.5"NH, Jet Fill 0 
Nozzles  
Forester, 1" NPSH 1 
Adjustable, 1" NPSH 20 
Adjustable, 1.5" NH 7 
Adjustable, .75" NH 3 
Foam, 1.5" NH 1 
Wyes  
1" NPSH, Two Way, Gated 7 
1.5" NH, Two Way, Gated  9 
Other  
Hydrant wrench 1 
Small spanners 6 
Hose Clamp 5 
Wheel Chock 1 

R2 Compartment  
Stihl MS362C Chainsaw, 25" bar 1 
Orange Chaps 2 
Pounder 1 
Earplugs 1bag 
Safety Glasses 2 

R3 Compartment  
Smoke Chaser Bladder Bags, filled w/wand 2 
Indian Bladder Bags w/ wand 3 
Mop Up Bag  
.75"NH, Garden Hose in ft 800 
1"NPSH-F to .75" NH-M 4 
.75" , Shut Off 5 
.75", Nozzles 5 
.75", Gated Wye 6 



 

EXHIBIT B 

R1 SCBA Bottle Compartment  
Fire extinguisher 1 
Hose Reel Crank 1 

R2 SCBA Bottle Compartment  
Fussees  full 

Rear Compartment Lower  
1.5"NH, 100" Rolled Hose  5 
1" NPSH, 100' Rolled Hose w/ nozzle 1 
1" NPSH, 10' back up hose w/ nozzle 1 
WUI hooks 2 
Bottled water cases 3 

L1 Compartment   
AA Batteries, Case 2.5 
AAA Batteries, Case 1 
Hand Wipes, Case 2 
Various tape rolls  
Glow sticks box 1 
Belt Weather Kit 1 
Various Cleaning Supplies  

L2 Compartment   
Tool Box 1 
Road Triangles, case 1 
Socket Wrench Set 1 
12 ton Bottle Jack 1 
Fire extinguisher 1 
Chain, in yellow bag 1 
Tire Iron 1 
Wasp Spray 1 

L3 Compartment (Tool Compartment)  
Bolt Cutters 1 
Claw Hammer 1 
Fencing Pliers 1 
Seat Belt Cutter 1 
Bastard File 5 
Pulaski 1 
Mcleod, full size 1 
mcleod, small size 1 
Rhino Tool 1 
Hoe 1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

Combi-Tool 1 
Pulaski/pounder  1 
Halligan 1 
Breaker Bar 1 

L4 Compartment (Bomb Box)  
Diesel fuel, gallons 5 
Drip Torch Mix, gallons 5 
Unleaded Fuel, gallons 3 
Spill Protection Dike 1 
Saw Bar Oil 5 
Bar Oil/Saw Fuel Sigs 5 
Fuel/Oil Dolmar 2 
Funnel 1 
Drip Torch Mix, gallons 1 
15w40, Gallon 1 
Black Spray Paint 1 
Can of Gum Out 1 
Red Spray Paint 1 
2 Stroke Fuel Mix, Pack 2 
Berry Pistol Flares, box 2 

L1 SCBA Compartment  
Fussees  Lots 
Fire extinguisher 1 

L2 SCBA Compartment  
Fire extinguisher 1 

Rear Left Hose Bed  
1.5"NH, 200" Hose lay w/nozzle and Tee 2 

Rear Left Center Hose Bed  
Open  

Rear Suction Hose Compartment  
1.5" suction Hose, with foot valve 2 
LDH Suction Hose 3 

Rear Left Hose Bed  
Hose Pack 11 
1.5" NH, 100' 11 
1" NPSH, 100' 11 
1" NPSH, adjustable nozzle 11 
1.5NH to 1"NPSH reducer 11 
1.5" NH Gated Wye 11 



 

EXHIBIT B 

Top Enclosed Crows Nest  
Foam Fill 1 
Water Fill 1 
Tarp 1 
Barbed Wire Roll 1 
Hitch w/vice welded on 1 
Spare PPE Bag 1 

Top Open Crows Nest  
Class A Foam, 5 gallon 4 
MRE, Case 3 

Top Front Side   
Jumper Cables 1 

Top Rear Side  
Open  

Crosslays  
1.5" NH, 200" w/ 1.5" Tee, 1.5" Nozze 2 

Front Bumber Hose Tray  
1"NPSH, 10' Attack line, w/ RTAA nozzle 1 
1.5" NH, 10' Attack Line, w/nozzle 1 

Cab  
Crew Boss Kit 1 
Driving GPS 1 

Rear Discharge  
1.5" Gated wye attached 1 

Right Side Discharge  
1.5" Gated wye attached w/ 1.5" to 1" reducer 1 

Right Side Spanner and Wrench set 1 
Left Side Spanner and Wrench Set 1 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT B 

Apparatus: Crash 90 EQ 
834 

Month:  Year:  

Item Description Q
T
Y 

  Item Description Q
T
Y 

  Item Description Q
T
Y 

  

CAB     COMPARTMENT 
L1 

    COMPARTMENT 
L5 

 
  

Hand lanterns 2   Nitrogen cylinder 
>1750psi 

1   Irons set 1   

Harris XL-200 
portable radio 

1   Argon cylinder 
>1750psi 

1   Pick head axe 1   

ERG 1   Cylinder cap 2   36" Pry bar 1   

GTAC tablet 1   Penetrator safety cap 1   30" Crow bar 1   

MDT 1   Penetrator safety tube 1   48" Pry bar 1   

Gate opener 1   Hydraulic cal cheat 
sheet 

1   K-tool kit 1   

Bay door opner 1   Rubber mallet 1   Denver tool 1   

EMS Protocols 1   Hydrant wrench 1   Water can 1   

Airport map set 1   Spanner wrench 2   High flow BC 
extinguisher 

1   

Key set 1   2.5" Gate valve 1   Halotron extinguisher 1   

Stead Airport prox 
card (attached to 
keys) 

1   2.5" x 1.5" (2) Gated 
wye 

1   COMPARTMENT 
R1 

    

Binoculars 1   5" Storz x 2.5" 
Female adapter 

1   Hydrant wrench 1   

M, L, XL EMS 
Gloves 

1e
a 

  2.5" x 1.5" Double 
female reducer 

1   Spanner wrench 2   

Scott X3 air packs 2   2.5" Female x 1.5" 
Male reducer 

1   2.5" x 1.5" Double 
female reducer 

1   

TIC  1   1.5" x .75" Reducer 1   2.5" Double female 1   

4 gas w/ air pump 1   Mini storz x 1.5" Pipe 
thread adapter 

1   2.5" Double male 1   

Medical bag 1   2.5" Double female 1   1.5" Double female 1   

O2 bag 1   2.5" Double male 1   1.5" Double male 1   

Ped bag 1   1.5" Double female 1   COMPARTMENT 
R2 

    

Triage pack 2   1.5" Double male 1   Storz spanner wrench 4   

C-Collar Bag 1   3" Drain line 1   TFT, 1.5", 30-200 
GPM, 100 PSI 
Nozzle 

1   

Edraulic batteries 2   COMPARTMENT 
L2 

    5" Storz x 2.5" 
Female adapter 

1   



 

EXHIBIT B 

Heat gun 1   TFT, 1.5", 30-200 
GPM, 100 PSI 
Nozzle 

1   Hose strap (webbing) 1   

Radiation detector 1   5" Storz x 2.5" 
Female adapter 

1   COMPARTMENT 
R3 

    

Slishman trction 
splint 

1   25' x 5" Supply line 1   TFT Transformer 
piercing nozzle 

1   

KED 1   25' x 3" Supply line 1   200' Life safety rope 1   

Safety vest 1   2.5" x 1.5" (2) Gated 
wye 

1   50' Throw rope 1   

Box N95 masks 1   2.5" (2) x 5" Storz 
gated siamese 

1   100' Throw rope 1   

Box Fire Wipes 1   5" Storz x Reno 
thread adapter 

1   COMPARTMENT 
R4 

    

Box Vionex wipes 1   TFT, 1.5", 30-200 
GPM, 100 PSI 
Nozzle 

1   100' Electric cord reel 
w/ junction box 

1   

Mega Mover 1   TFT, 2.5", 95-300 
GPM, 100 PSI 
Nozzle 

1   RamFan 1   

TEMS (ballistic 
helmet/vest, GSW 
kit) 

1   Hose strap (webbing) 1   Spare rotary saw 
blade 

1   

Case water 1   COMPARTMENT 
L3 

    Saw fuel can 1   

ROOF     Scott, 45 Min SCBA 
bottles >4000psi  

3   Rotary saw tool kit 1   

24' Ext ladder 1   COMPARTMENT 
L4 

 
  COMPARTMENT 

R5 
    

14' Roof ladder 1   Bolt Cutters 1   Combi E-draulic w/ 
batt 

1   

10' Attic ladder 1   Recip saw with 2 
batts, spare blades 

1   100' Air line reel 1   

50' Garden hose 1   3' x 14' Hall Runner 1   Step ladder 1   

50' x 1 3/4" Hose 4   12' x 12' Salvage 
cover 

1   Stihl Circular Saw 1   

50' x 3" Hose 3   Ajax rescue tool kit 1   
   

Backboard 1   Extendable pry axe 
w/ extra end 

1   
   

   
Crash roll 1   

   

   
O-Tool 1   

   

 
  



 

EXHIBIT B 

Crash 91 inventory list 

100 ft reel with combo nozzle  

Three extinguishers  

Two hundred feet inch and three quarter 

Absorbent bin x 1 

Electric fan with battery 

K12 blade, fuel for k12 

K12 saw 

2 rope bags 

Swift water throw bag  

Battery powered extrication spreaders with 2 batteries  

Axe 

Aircraft rescue tool 

Halligan  

Bolt cutters  

K tool 

Tool box with ajax 

Small axe 

Little giant  

5 inch 25 feet  

Cooler  

200 feet of inch and three quarter  

Storz 

Rubber mallet 

Spanner wrenches  

Nozzle  

Gated wye  

Storz to 2 ½ 

Double male 2 ½ coupling 



 

EXHIBIT B 

Double female 2 ½ coupling  

Double male 1 3/4 coupling 

Double female 1 3/4 coupling  

3 spare SCBA cylinders  

Nitrogen cylinder 

Halogen cylinder  

ALS bags  

MDT dispatch computer  

Headsets  

Mac tac gear  

 
  



 

EXHIBIT B 

E 90 EQ887 Red Inventory 
CABIN 
FRONT   Need Qty 

 CENTER CONSOLE   

 Binoculars 10x50  1 

 TIC Bullard  1 

 XL200 Radio  1 

 Handheld GPS  1 

 EGR   1 

 NIOSH   1 

 IRPG  1 

 BK radio manual  1 

 Airfield maps, terminal maps and city maps  
1 

each 

 AEP  1 

 EMS Protocols  1 

 NFPA aircraft familiarization guide  1 

 Friction loss calculation sheet  1 

 Emergency response to terrorism guide  1 

 Captains Keys w/ASA Key  1 

 MDT  1 

 Heat gun   1 

 15 foot 4-gas tube  1 

 Garage door openers (on driver visor)  2 

 Gate opener (on driver visor)  1 

 BEHIND CAPT SEAT   

 Safety vest  1 

 Crew Boss bag  1 

 BEHIND DRIVER SEAT   

 Safety Vest  1 
Rear Cabin    

 Ice Chest  1 

 4 gas  1 

 Lantern   2 

 M,L,XL medical gloves  
1 

each 

 95 Masks  1 

 Safety Vests  2 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 KED  1 

 Triage bags  3 

 6' rubbish hook mounted outside  1 
L1 TOP SHELF   

 2.5" Double Females  2 

 2.5" Double Males  2 

 2.5" to 1.5" Reducers Male x 2; Female x 1  
1 

each 

 1.5" Double Females  2 

 1.5" Double Males  2 

 1.5" to .75" Reducers  2 

 Various Hose gaskets in bag  1 

 75 psi Metro 1  1 

 75 psi Metro 2  1 

 Smooth bore stack w/ 1.5", 1.25", 1" tips  
1 

each 

 Smooth bore nozzle w/ 1.25", 1.125", 1" tips  1 

 Yellow caution tape  1 

 Red caution tape  1 

 Duct Tape  1 

 Flagging  1 

 Operator Clipboard  1 

 Marker  2 

 Grease Pen  1 

 Towel  1 

 MIDDLE SHELF   

 Engineers Bag  1 

 2.5" Discharge Cap  1 

 2.5" Intake Cap  1 

 2.5" Double Female  1 

 5" Storz to 2.5" Female  1 

 5" Storz to 5.422 Hydrant   1 

 2 spanner wrenches  2 

 Hydrant wrench  1 

 Rubber Mallet  1 

 50" of 1" rubber hose    

 2.5" Gate Valve  1 

 2.5" to 1.5" Gated Wye  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 2.5" Gated Wye  1 

 Storz spanner wrench  4 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 25' of 3" Fill Hose  1 

 25' of 5" Fill Hose  1 
L2 TOP SHELF   

 RIT Pack   

 Primary Tag line RIT Safety Solutions  1 

 2 search ropes RIT Safety Solutions  2 

 red bag w/ CNC Harnesses  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 4:1 rigging system with bag  1 

 40' rope throw bag  1 

 Utility Rope  1 

 Rescue Rope bag w/ hardware  1 
L3 TOP SHELF   

 Leak detector bottle  1 

 1 gallon granulated plug n dike  1 

 1 jar of plug n dike putty  1 

 36x36 drain cover in box  1 

 Aircraft resuce tool kit  1 

 MIDDLE SHELF   

 Milwaukee bag w/ impact driver and hammer drill and bits  1 

 Ajax Kit  1 

 Lock out tag out kit  1 

 Power flares  1 

 Edraulic battery Hurst   1 

 WUI hooks  2 

 Chain  1 

 8 ton bottle jack  1 

 4 ton bottle jack  1 

 Bottle jack handle  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 ABC extinguisher  1 

 Halon 1211 extinguisher  1 

 Water extinguisher  1 

 Edraulic spreader  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 Edraulic cutter  1 

 Edraulic Ram   1 

 Edraulic Ram Extention bar  1 

 Edraulic battery Hurst  3 

 High Pressure Bag KPI-32  1 

 High Pressure Bag KPI-12  2 
REAR TOP SHELF   

 Tactical bag w/ 3 helmets, vests and triage packs  1 

 Bag of absorbent pads and pigs  1 

 High pressure air bag w/ regulator, hoses and valves  1 

 Lid loc kit  1 

 Cones  5 

 Jug of insta sorb  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 Tool box  1 

 Bag of salvage covers  1 

 Bag of electrical cords and Edraulic 110v battery unit  1 

 Bag of cribbing  1 

 50" of 1" rubber hose w/ 1.5" to .75" reducer  1 

 Ram Fan  1 

 LADDER CABINET   

 Pike Pole  1 

 New York Hook  1 

 10' collapsible attic ladder  1 

 14' Roof ladder  1 

 24' Extension ladder  1 
R1 TOP SHELF   

 PEDS bag  1 

 Disinfectant spray  1 

 Disindectant wipes  1 

 Bag of Fire wipes and Vionex wipes  1 

 Infectous control kit  1 

 BSI Kit  2 

 MIDDLE SHELF   

 Monitor   1 

 Box of spare ALS equipment  1 

 Suction unit  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 C collar bag w/ straps and head blocks  1 

 Slishman traction splint  1 

 Emergency blanket  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 Medical Bag  1 

 02 Bag  1 
R2 TOP SHELF   

 Pulaski  1 

 Combi tool  1 

 Spade shovel  1 

 Square point shovel  1 

 Plastic shovel  1 

 Broom w/ detachable handle  1 

 Pry bar  1 

 Macleod  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 RED O-plates Jr.  2 

 Big Easy  1 

 Glass Master   1 

 Bailing hook  1 

 K tool Kit  1 

 Crash Axe  1 

 Seat belt cutter w/ zuse key  1 

 Articulating elevator key  1 

 Fixed elevator key  1 

 Sprinkler shut off (quick stop)  1 

 Slim Jim door tool  1 

 Halligan  1 

 Set of Irons , flat head axe Halligan and straps  1 
R3 HANGING   

 Wildland packs  3 

 Chaps  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 Stihl Chainsaw  1 

 Rotary Saw  1 

 Spare Rotary Saw blade  1 

 1 gallon of bar oil  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 1 gallon of premix saw gas  1 

 Funnel  1 

 Saw kit  1 

 Chain sharpener  1 

 Pickhead axe  1 

 36" bolt cutters  1 

 4' rubbish hook  1 

 Step chocks  2 
TOP Crows Nest   

 Deck Gun w/fog nozzle 75psi  1 

 Ground monitor base  1 

 Wildland progressive packs  1 

 Backpack pump  1 

 Backboard  1 

 100' hotel packs w/75psi nozzles  2 

 Crosslays   

 200' of 1 3/4" w/75PSI nozzles   

 Hose bed 1   

 400' of 2.5" attack line w/ 75psi fog nozzle   

 Hose bed 2   

 500' of 3" supply line in 100' lengths; Gated 2.5" Wye;   

 Hose Bed 3   

 700' of 5" in 100' lenths   

 100' of 5" in 50' lengths w/ hydrant bag attached   
 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 

E 90 EQ887 Yellow Inventory 
CABIN 
FRONT   Need Qty 

 CENTER CONSOLE   

 Binoculars 10x50  1 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 Friction loss calculation sheet  1 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 BEHIND CAPT SEAT   

 Safety vest  1 

 Crew Boss bag  1 

 BEHIND DRIVER SEAT   

 Safety Vest  1 
Rear Cabin    

 Ice Chest  1 

    

    

 M,L,XL medical gloves  
1 

each 

 95 Masks  1 

 Safety Vests  2 

 KED  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 Triage bags  3 

 6' rubbish hook mounted outside  1 
L1 TOP SHELF   

 2.5" Double Females  2 

 2.5" Double Males  2 

 2.5" to 1.5" Reducers Male x 2; Female x 1  
1 

each 

 1.5" Double Females  2 

 1.5" Double Males  2 

 1.5" to .75" Reducers  2 

 Various Hose gaskets in bag  1 

 75 psi Metro 1  1 

 75 psi Metro 2  1 

 Smooth bore stack w/ 1.5", 1.25", 1" tips  
1 

each 

 Smooth bore nozzle w/ 1.25", 1.125", 1" tips  1 

 Yellow caution tape  1 

 Red caution tape  1 

 Duct Tape  1 

 Flagging  1 

 Operator Clipboard  1 

 Marker  2 

 Grease Pen  1 

 Towel  1 

 MIDDLE SHELF   

 Engineers Bag  1 

 2.5" Discharge Cap  1 

 2.5" Intake Cap  1 

 2.5" Double Female  1 

 5" Storz to 2.5" Female  1 

 5" Storz to 5.422 Hydrant   1 

 2 spanner wrenches  2 

 Hydrant wrench  1 

 Rubber Mallet  1 

 50" of 1" rubber hose    

 2.5" Gate Valve  1 

 2.5" to 1.5" Gated Wye  1 

 2.5" Gated Wye  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 Storz spanner wrench  4 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 25' of 3" Fill Hose  1 

 25' of 5" Fill Hose  1 
L2 TOP SHELF   

 RIT Pack   

 Primary Tag line RIT Safety Solutions  1 

 2 search ropes RIT Safety Solutions  2 

 red bag w/ CNC Harnesses  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

    

 40' rope throw bag  1 

 Utility Rope  1 

    
L3 TOP SHELF   

 Leak detector bottle  1 

 1 gallon granulated plug n dike  1 

 1 jar of plug n dike putty  1 

    

 Aircraft resuce tool kit  1 

 MIDDLE SHELF   

 Milwaukee bag w/ impact driver and hammer drill and bits  1 

 Ajax Kit  1 

    

 Power flares  1 

 Edraulic battery Hurst   1 

    

 Chain  1 

 8 ton bottle jack  1 

 4 ton bottle jack  1 

 Bottle jack handle  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 ABC extinguisher  1 

 Halon 1211 extinguisher  1 

 Water extinguisher  1 

 Edraulic spreader  1 

 Edraulic cutter  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 Edraulic Ram   1 

 Edraulic Ram Extention bar  1 

 Edraulic battery Hurst  3 

 High Pressure Bag KPI-32  1 

 High Pressure Bag KPI-12  2 
REAR TOP SHELF   

 Tactical bag w/ 3 helmets, vests and triage packs  1 

 Bag of absorbent pads and pigs  1 

 High pressure air bag w/ regulator, hoses and valves  1 

    

 Cones  5 

 Jug of insta sorb  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 Tool box  1 

 Bag of salvage covers  1 

 Bag of electrical cords and Edraulic 110v battery unit  1 

 Bag of cribbing  1 

 50" of 1" rubber hose w/ 1.5" to .75" reducer  1 

    

 LADDER CABINET   

 Pike Pole  1 

 New York Hook  1 

 10' collapsible attic ladder  1 

 14' Roof ladder  1 

 24' Extension ladder  1 
R1 TOP SHELF   

 PEDS bag  1 

 Disinfectant spray  1 

 Disindectant wipes  1 

 Bag of Fire wipes and Vionex wipes  1 

 Infectous control kit  1 

 BSI Kit  2 

 MIDDLE SHELF   

    

 Box of spare ALS equipment  1 

 Suction unit  1 

 C collar bag w/ straps and head blocks  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 Slishman traction splint  1 

 Emergency blanket  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 Medical Bag  1 

 02 Bag  1 
R2 TOP SHELF   

 Pulaski  1 

 Combi tool  1 

 Spade shovel  1 

 Square point shovel  1 

 Plastic shovel  1 

 Broom w/ detachable handle  1 

 Pry bar  1 

 Macleod  1 

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 RED O-plates Jr.  2 

 Big Easy  1 

 Glass Master   1 

 Bailing hook  1 

 K tool Kit  1 

 Crash Axe  1 

 Seat belt cutter w/ zuse key  1 

    

 Fixed elevator key  1 

 Sprinkler shut off (quick stop)  1 

 Slim Jim door tool  1 

 Halligan  1 

 Set of Irons , flat head axe Halligan and straps  1 
R3 HANGING   

 Wildland packs  3 

    

 BOTTOM SHELF   

 Stihl Chainsaw  1 

 Rotary Saw  1 

 Spare Rotary Saw blade  1 

 1 gallon of bar oil  1 

 1 gallon of premix saw gas  1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 Funnel  1 

 Saw kit  1 

 Chain sharpener  1 

 Pickhead axe  1 

 36" bolt cutters  1 

 4' rubbish hook  1 

 Step chocks  2 
TOP Crows Nest   

 Deck Gun w/fog nozzle 75psi  1 

 Ground monitor base  1 

 Wildland progressive packs  1 

 Backpack pump  1 

 Backboard  1 

 100' hotel packs w/75psi nozzles  2 

 Crosslays   

 200' of 1 3/4" w/75PSI nozzles   

 Hose bed 1   

 400' of 2.5" attack line w/ 75psi fog nozzle   

 Hose bed 2   

 500' of 3" supply line in 100' lengths; Gated 2.5" Wye;   

 Hose Bed 3   

 700' of 5" in 100' lenths   

 100' of 5" in 50' lengths w/ hydrant bag attached   
 
 
 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 

APPARATUS WEEKLY INVENTORY 

Apparatus: Foam Trailer Month:  
Item Description QTY  Item Description QTY  

EXTERIOR   TOOL COMPARTMENT   

Honda EM 5000 generator 1  DMV registration 1  
100' Electric cord reel 2  Ground monitor base 1  
Monitor 1  Smooth bore stack (4 pc) 1  
2.5" Fog nozzle w/ foam eductor 1  Rubber mallet 1  
1.5" Cap 4  Storz spanner wrench 2  
5" Storz cap 2  Spanner wrench 2  
Spare tire 1  Lug wrench 1  
200' x 1 3/4" Preconnect 4  Foam pail wrench 2  
200' x 3" Preconnect 2  8 Ton bottle jack 1  
TFT 1.5" Automatic nozzle 2  Hydrant wrench 1  
TFT MX foam jet aerator 2  Spanner wrench 2  
Pick-up tubes (various sizes) 4  Spare inline ball valve 1  
Pick-up tube suction hose 1  Air filter set for generator 1  
Pick-up tube valve 1  5" Storz x 5" female hose 1  
ABC Extinguisher 1  2.5" (2) x 5" Storz siamese 1  

ROOF   2.5" Double female 2  
24' Ext ladder 1  2.5" Double male 2  
14' Roof ladder 1  1.5" Double female 2  
10' Attic ladder 1  1.5" Double male 2  
High rise pack 1  1.5" x .75" Reducer 2  
16" Rotary saw 1  1.5" Cap 3  
16" Rotary saw spare blades 2  1.5" Male pipe x 1.5" hose adapter 1  
50' Garden hose 1  1.5" Female hose x 1" male pipe 1  
50' x 1 3/4" Hose 4  Mini storz x 3/4" female hose 1  
50' x 3" Hose 3     



 

EXHIBIT B 

Hose on the rack 

Wildlad Hose 

9) hose packs complete set up 

10)50” sections of 1” 

4)100’ sections of 1” 

2)100’sections of 1.5” 

 

Structure hose 

26)1.75” hose 

15)2.5” hose  

31)3” hose 

2)5” hose 

2) short 5” fill hose 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 

APPARATUS WEEKLY INVENTORY 

Apparatus: MCI90 Month:                      Year:  
Item Description QTY  Item Description QTY  

CAB   COMPARTMENT L3   

ABC extinguisher 1  Wool blanket 30  
EMS gloves (M, L, XL) 1  Emergency blanket (orange) 60  
Caution tape roll 1  Emergency blanket (yellow) 60  
First aid kit 1  Bio-hazard trash can 2  
Reno/Sparks map book 1  Triage are bag (set) 1  
F-6 Manual 1  COMPARTMENT L4   

Awaning pole 2  Long back board w/ straps 64  
ERG 2  Folding head block 58  
EMS protocol manual 1  Step ladder 1  
RTAA grid map 1  EXTERIOR REAR   

Registration/Insurance 1  Dolly 2  
Hand sanitizer 1  Portable 500 watt light 2  
Gate opener 2  COMPARTMENT R1   

Bay door opener 1  Trauma bag (orange) 11  
COMPARTMENT L1   Triage pack 2  

SMART EMS command bag 1  Triage area lights (set) 1  
SWAT-T torniquet (case) 1  White light (set) 1  
Drinking water (case) 2  Colored light stick (box) 1  
Electric cord reel 2  6d x 6" Nail (box) 1  
Triage area lights (set) 1  COMPARTMENT R2   

White light (set) 1  Trauma bag (orange) 25  
Triage ribbon (set) 1  O2 bag 24  
Traffic cone ribbon adapter 3  COMPARTMENT R3   

Colored light stick (box) 1  Wool blanket 30  
Triage pack 3  Emergency blanket (orange) 60  



 

EXHIBIT B 

Honda EM5000 generator 1  Emergency blanket (yellow) 60  
Wheel chock 3  Bio-hazard trash can 2  

COMPARTMENT L2   Triage are bag (set) 1  
Trauma bag (orange) 25  COMPARTMENT R4   

O2 bag 24  Long back board w/ straps 54  

  Folding head block 60  

  Medium traffic cone 10  

  Quick shade shelter 2  
 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 

Striker 1500 Inventory ER106 
Item & Location Quanity 

Cab  
Harris 800 mhz radio 1 

iCom VHF radio 1 
SCBA's 2 

Tact. Vest and Helmet 1 
Tactical Med pouch 1 

Binoculars 1 
Safety Vest 1 

NIOSH guide 1 
ERG 1 

Airport Map 1 
EMS protocols 1 

ASA key/key ring 1 
Bay Door opener 1 

L1 Compartment  
Airway bag 1 
1st out bag 1 
Triage pack 1 

Blanket 1 
C-collar 1 

KED 1 
Slishman splint 1 

Ped's bag 1 
Cavi wipes 1 
EMS gloves 3 
Hand lantern 1 

L2 Compartment  
Ecologic foam testing valve 1 

L3 Compartment  
Dual agent handlines 1 
L4 Compartment  
20 ft. 5 inch hose 1 
50 ft. 3 inch hose 1 

L5 Compartment  
Hydrant bag 1 

Rubber mallet 1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

Storz wrenches 2 
2.5 gate valve 1 

1.5 to 2.5 siamese 1 
1.5 to 2.5 ball valve 1 
1.5 Double female 2 
1.5 Double male 2 

2.5 Double female 2 
2.5 Double male 2 

2.5 to 1.5 double female 1 
2.5 female to 1.5 male 1 

100 psi TFT nozzle 1 
300 ft. 1.75 hose 6 
Hydrant wrench 1 
Spanner wrench 2 

L6 Compartment  
Crash roll kit 1 

Crash axe 2 
Pry bar 2 

Set of irons 1 
crow bar 1 

wheel chocks 2 
B1 Compartment  

Road cones 6 
R1 Compartment  

Hand lantern 1 
Leak kit type A 1 
Utility rope bag 2 

Throw rope 1 
R2 Compartment  

Dual agent handlines 1 
R3 Compartment  
Sparkless tool kit 1 
Blue socket set 1 
Red tool box 1 

TFT piercing nozzle 1 
Spanner wrench 2 
Hydrant wrench 1 

1.5 Double female 1 
1.5 Double male 1 



 

EXHIBIT B 

1.5 to garden hose 1 
R4 Compartment  
Water Extinguisher 1 
Halon Extinguisher 1 

Met-l X Extinguisher 1 
K50 circular saw 1 

Hurst Combi 1 
Hurst batteries 2 

Sawzall 1 
Ajax kit 1 

R5 Compartment  

Bolt cutters 1 
R6 Compartment  

Pike pole 1 
Garden hose 1 

SKED 1 
Crash axe 1 

R7 Compartment  

Pigs 4 
Absorbant  

Absorbant pads  

Salvage covers 2 
Non sparking shovel 1 

Dust pan 1 
Top  

14 ft. ladder 1 
Rubbish Hook 1 

Back board 1 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT C 

EXHIBIT C 

Staffing 

• RTAA Fire Station will be RFD Station 90 with the current unit designators: 
o Crash 90 
o Crash 91 
o Engine 90 
o Brush 90 
o Battalion 9 

• Daily Staffing must meet or exceed the staffing requirements listed below. 
o Battalion 9 will be stationed at Station 90 and staffed with an ARFF Certified 

Chief Officer. 
o RFD Chief Officers will obtain ARFF Certification, Airport Qualification and 

meet Part 139 Requirements before being allowed to fill the Battalion 9 position. 
o The goal is to get all Suppression Chief Officers qualified to fill the Battalion 9 

position. 
 9 Battalion Chiefs 
 4 Division Chiefs 

• Staffing of ARFF Apparatus will remain at current staffing levels: 
o Crash 90 – Captain & FEO 
o Crash 91 – FEO 

 All FEOs assigned to C90 or C91 will be ARFF Certified, Airport 
Qualified and meet Part 139 Requirements. 

• Staffing of Non ARFF Apparatus 
o Engine 90 – Captain, FEO and 2 Firefighters. 

 Captain and FEO on E 90 must be Airport Qualified. 
o Engine 90 staffing levels will comply with current L731 CBA requirements. 
o The RFD will maintain a minimum number of personnel who are qualified to fill 

positions at Station 90 (C90, C91, E90 & BAT9). 
• Staffing generally 

o Continuous staffing requirement 
 Engine 90 will be assigned to RFD Station 90 and shall be staffed in 

accordance with L731 CBA staffing requirements. 
 Engine 90 will be equipped with ALS medications and supplies to mirror 

RFD apparatus. 
 ARFF apparatus shall be assigned to RFD Station 90 and shall be staffed 

to meet or exceed all current FAA, ARFF, Part 139 and Index C 
requirements. 

o Brownouts 
 Engine 90 will be inserted into the established Brown Out Matrix. 

Engine 90 will not be shut down until the Daily Head Count drops below 
50.  Normal Daily Headcount as of 8/27/24 is 68 personnel per shift. 

 ARFF Apparatus will be exempt from Brown Outs. 
o Notifications 

 In the event that a reduction in staffing for Engine 90 becomes necessary, 
the CEO (or his/her designee) of the Reno Airport will be notified as 
soon as possible. 

 



 

EXHIBIT C 

• Response 
o District 90 in its current form will remain District 90 until such time the 

neighboring district boundaries are re-drawn to account for E-90 and Battalion 90 
responding into RFD incidents outside of Dist. 90. 

o RTAA Battalion Chiefs (Battalion 9) will be responsible for operations and 
incidents within Dist. 90 until such time that Dist. 90 is re-drawn and the RTAA 
BCs are cleared to manage incidents outside of Dist. 90. 

o Dispatch of RTAA Units and RFD Units to and from RTAA jurisdiction will 
remain as is until such time that District 90 boundaries are re-drawn and E 90 is 
incorporated into RFD run strings. 

o There will be no reduction in response to RTAA Airside or Landside properties 
from the RFD. 

o Engine 90 and Battalion 9 will be incorporated into RFD Run Strings after all 
required cross training and certifications are completed. 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT D 

EXHIBIT D 
 

 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT E 

EXHIBIT E 
 

Personal Property and Location 
 

Dorm rooms 
9- mattress 
10- Box Spring 
10- Bed Frame 
11- Study Desk 
12- Computer Chair 
4- Night Stand 
10- Trash Can 
3- Landline phone 
1-Computer 
30-Lockers 
 
Day Room 
8- Lazy Boy chairs 
1 couch 
1-phone 
1-Projector w/screen 
4-small tables 
 
Laundry 
1-washer 
1-dryer 
1-Vacuum cleaner 
 
Workshop 
2-tool cabinet 
1-full set husky tools 
1-8”Bench grinder 
1-Hydrant flow testing kit 
1-electric exhaust fan 
1-Honda EB5000X generator 



 

EXHIBIT E 

1-Milwakee leaf blower 
1-Diehard battery charger 
1-Power washer 
1-Land line telephone 
 
Dry Chem Storage 
1-Halotron tank 
6-Nitrogen bottles 
3-Argon bottles 
1-Fire extinguisher training prop 
4-Large propane bottles for training prop 
5-5gallon buckets class A foam 
 
SCBA Room 
1-compressor 
1-Fill station (OOS) 
1-17 SCBA bottles 
 
Air compressor room 
1-Large air compressor for station air 
 
Apparatus Bays 
1-Rouge echo bike 
2-Roughe wood step boxes 
1-10kg to 32kg kettle bell set 
1-20lb to 40lb exercise balls 
1-grip bell set 
1-push sled 
1-exersise rope 
1-weighted ruck sack 
2-benchpress bars 
1-exersise mallet 
1-adjustable bench 
3-45lb weight plates 
2-25lb weight plates 



 

EXHIBIT E 

2-10lb weight plates 
1-bumper plate set 10,25,35,45 pound 
1-force entry training door prop 
1-Portacool swamp cooler 
1-E-one foam testing machine  
1-hose testing pump 
1-24’extention ladder 
1-Little Giant ladder 
1-8 foot a frame ladder 
1-20 foot a frame ladder 
5-50gallon 3% AFFF 
 
Medical Decon Room 
1-ice machine 
 
File Room 
3-storage shelve 
 
Outside Storage 
5-folding tables 
2-storage shelve 
1-fire training prop 
 
Janitor closet #1 
1-Spartan cleaning agent dispenser 
 
Kitchen/Patio/Dining Room 
3-refrigerator 
1-cast iron duct oven 
1-large cast iron 
1-microwave 
1-ninja blender 
1-ninja food processor 
1-toaster 
1-sink 



 

EXHIBIT E 

1-dish washer 
1-commercial coffee maker 
1-coffee grinder 
2-landline phone 
2-fire extinguisher 
1-Wolf stove top oven 
2-trash can 
1-Insta pot 
Pots and pans 
5-high top chair 
8-black rolling chair 
1-water cooler 
1-60inch tv 
1-folding table 
2-kitchen table 
1-Napoleon commercial grill 
6-outdoor bench 
 
Firefighter Office 
1-copier/scanner 
2-paper shredder 
3-computer desk 
3-computers  
6-monitors 
8-chairs 
4-landline phones 
2-four gas monitor 
1-four gas calibrator 
1-quantifit respiration face mask test 
 
Captain’s Office 
2-computer desk 
2-computers 
4-monitors 
5-chairs 



 

EXHIBIT E 

1-tv 
2-landline phones 
1-paper shredder 
 
Battalion Chief Office 
1-couch 
1-computer desk 
1-file cabinet 
2-chairs 
1-landline phone 
1-computer 
2-monitor 
1-book shelf 
 
Gym 
2-Portable fans 
1-stair stepper 
1-treadmill 
1-eliptical  
1-peleton bike 
1-cable machine 
1-squat rack 
1-benchpress  
2-workout bench 
1-dip rack 
1-10 to 100 lb free weight set 
7-Kettle bell 
3-curl bar 
1-athletic training platform 
1-workout matt 
3-stability board 
 
Equipment Room 
4-AED 
3-Adult pads 



 

EXHIBIT E 

4-Ped pads 
1-spare battery (aed) 
2-radio mic cables 
3-edraulic batteries 
3-crash axe 
3-1.5inch nozzle 
1-2.5inch nozzle 
5-hose straps 
2-storz adaptors 
1-pressure relief valve 
2-1.5inch flow meter 
1-5inch to 2.5 gated wye 
2-rubber mallet 
2-70mmcap wrench 
1-hydrant wrench  
8-water rescue helmet 
2-knox box key 
2-spanner wrench 
8-life jacket 
2-hose clamp 
5-2.5 inch double female 
3-2.5 inch double male 
4-1.75inch double male 
3-1.75 inch double female 
6-5inch storz couplings 
2-5inch to 2.5 inch reducer 
8-swift water rope bag 
1-hydrant bag 
1-metal x extinguisher 
2-dave clark headset 
2-mystery ranch med bags 
1-mystery ranch CC bag 
16-silicone half mask 
1-bag triage tarps 
2-5gallon water coolers 



 

EXHIBIT E 

1-stream light 
4-handheld stream lite 
1-tie down strap 
7-yellow wildland shirts 
1-med wildland jacket 
1-36x32 blue wildland pants 
4-wildland shrouds 
2-helment w/goggle 
4-med leather glove 
2-xl leather glove 
4-xl turnout glove 
5-L turnout glove 
4-M turnout glove 
5-Sked 
2-Reeve sleeve 
2-38x30 turnout pants 
1-46x32 turnout pants 
2-44 chest 32 sleeve turnout coats 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT F 

EXHIBIT F 

Scope of Services 

ARFF Services and All Hazard Services 

• RFD must meet required annual training and certification of FAA Part 139. 
• RFD must maintain or exceed ARFF Index C as outlined in FAA Part 139 Certification. 
• RFD will provide Dispatching, Fire Prevention, Logistical Support, non_ARFF 

Apparatus and Equipment Maintenance and All Hazard Response to the RTAA and all 
RTAA business and property as the primary response department and Authority Having 
Jurisdiction. 

• All Hazard Response includes but is not limited to: Fire Suppression, EMS, Hazardous 
Materials Response, USAR, Fire Inspections and Fire Investigations. 

• Upon execution of Contract for Services, RTAA will be party to all Mutual and 
Automatic Aid agreements that currently are in effect with all local, regional, state and 
federal partners. 

• The RFD and City of Reno are responsible for all employment related issues and 
enforcement of the L731 CBA. 

• All RFD personnel who are bid or working at Station 90: 
 For ARFF Apparatus, must hold and be current with ARFF Certification, 

RTAA Airport Qualification and Part 139 Training to staff any ARFF 
Apparatus. 

• For Non ARFF Apparatus (Type 1 Engine) 
o Captain or FEO must have RTAA Qualification 
o FFs must be RTAA Badged 
o Staffing of Station 90 and apparatus shall comply with L731 CBA as well as 

FAA / RTAA staffing requirements. 
• Currently staffing requirements for vehicles: 

o Crash 90 – Captain and FEO 
o Crash 91 – FEO 
o Engine 90 – ILS- Captain, FEO, 2 Firefighters 

• Apparatus 
o Type 1 Engine will be supplied and outfitted by the RTAA. 
o Type 1 Engine will be maintained by the RFD Fleet Mechanics. 
o Light Duty Vehicles for Battalion 9 will be provided by the RTAA (3 required, 

one per BC) 
o Fuel will be provided by the RTAA for Battalion 9, E90, C 90 and C91 and be 

tracked and reported annually. 
o All ARFF apparatus will be provided, outfitted and maintained by the RTAA. 

• Fire Station Maintenance 
o All Station Maintenance and furnishings will be provided by the RTAA. 

• Logistics 
o All ordering of supplies will be done through the current RFD Asset Tracking 

Program. 
o All tracking of assets and supplies will be done through the current RFD Asset 

Tracking Program. 
o All delivery of supplies will be handled by RFD Logistics personnel. 

• Workers Comp 



 

EXHIBIT F 

o All Workers Comp claims and processes will be administered through the City of 
Reno and RFD. 

• Training 
o All required training (EMS, ARFF, NFPA, Annual Refreshers) will be 

administered by the RFD Training Division. 

Inspection Services 
The CITY will: 

• Inspect properties/businesses within the RTAA for compliance with the adopted  IFC 
codes, including related NFPA standards and regulations to identify, report and 
eliminate fire hazards materials threats related to fire and life safety for industrial, 
commercial, institutional, residential, public assembly areas and other properties. 

• Investigate complaints regarding fire and life safety hazards and conducts inspections 
of existing buildings or structures to determine if hazardous or illegal conditions 
exist; document code violations; recommends modifications to rectify violations and 
ensures code conformance. 

• Issue citations to compel compliance with relevant codes and regulations to safeguard 
life and property from fire. 

• Prepare reports and maintain records regarding inspections, fire losses, fire causes 
and other relevant information using an electronic database and office software. This 
will include initial creation of occupancies and occupancy information into the cities 
database and providing immediate occupancy information access for first responders. 

• Perform related duties and responsibilities as required. 
 

Dispatch Services 
 
The parties agree to the following allocation of responsibilities with respect to the Dispatch Services.   
 
The CITY will: 

• Receive, process and dispatch "9-1-1 emergency" calls for service to the 
AUTHORITY within its jurisdiction, including the use of Emergency and Fire and 
Medical protocols. 

• Receive, process and dispatch non-emergency calls for and to the AUTHORITY 
within its Jurisdiction. 

• Maintain and record dispatch related activities with the use of a Computer Aided 
Dispatching system (CAD). 

• Retain CAD records, telephone audio records, and radio audio records and related 
evidentiary materials, and provide retrieval of such records at the recipient's request 
in accordance with state public records laws. 

• Provide GIS maintenance, including routine maintenance of Run Cards, Response 
Patterns and Premise Hazards. 



 

EXHIBIT F 

• Coordinate public safety responses with local law enforcement, fire department or 
emergency medical agencies (including third party agencies) to provide assistance 
when appropriate. All notifications will be made in accordance with Public Safety 
Dispatch policies. 

• Communicate and coordinate all responses with the AUTHORITY, within its 
jurisdiction, including notification to Airport Authority Communications. 

The AUTHORITY will: 

• Upgrade RTAA Fire Station 90 to the PURVIS Station Paging System to be 
compatible with the current City of Reno Fire Department dispatching system. 

• Upgrade RTAA Fire Station 90 and the RTAA Dispatch Center with Call Status 
Boards. 

• Outfit applicable apparatus with compatible MDCs and all required radios. 
 



 

EXHIBIT G 

EXHIBIT G 
Calculation of Estimated and Actual Annual Payments 

 
The Estimated Annual Payment for a given Fiscal Year shall be the sum of the following: 
 

A. The estimated direct personnel costs to be incurred by the CITY for sufficient 
personnel (as set forth in the Annual Plan) to provide the Services, which shall be based 
upon the then-current labor rates (inclusive of benefits and incentives) as determined 
by the applicable collective bargaining agreement. 

B. An estimated overtime allocation, calculated by multiplying the number of full-time 
employees (FTEs) set forth in the Annual Plan by the CITY’s current per-FTE 
overtime budget for similar positions in the CITY. 

C. An estimate of costs to be incurred by the CITY for necessary services and supplies in 
performance of the Services, based on the budget in the Annual Plan. 

D. An estimated administrative support cost to be incurred by the CITY for general 
government support of the FTEs assigned to provide the Services (e.g., human 
resources, legal, finance, etc.).  This estimated administrative support cost shall be 
equal to 12% of Items A, B, and C above. 

 
The Actual Annual Payment for a given Fiscal Year shall be the sum of the following: 
 

E. The direct personnel costs actually incurred by the CITY to provide the Services, 
inclusive of salaries (including overtime), benefits, and incentives.  This Item E shall 
not include any costs incurred by the CITY in support of activities other those directly 
related to the Services (e.g., time spent by personnel assigned to the Airport but 
responding to calls for assistance elsewhere). 

F. The actual costs incurred by the CITY for supplies and contracted services in support 
of providing the Services.  This Item F shall not include any costs incurred by the CITY 
in support of activities other those directly related to the Services (e.g., supplies used 
for other purposes). 

G. The indirect and/or administrative costs of the CITY’s general government properly 
allocated to the Airport Fire Services Cost Center pursuant to the CITY’s internal cost 
allocation plan under 2 CFR Part 200 (or reasonably similar document, which the 
AUTHORITY may accept in its reasonable discretion), provided that any such indirect 
and/or administrative costs shall not include any allocations for time, personnel, or 
supplies unrelated to providing the Services and shall not be duplicative of any direct 
costs charged under Items E or F. 

 



 

EXHIBIT H 

EXHIBIT H 
 

  
 



 

EXHIBIT I 

EXHIBIT I 
 

REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. Compliance with Nondiscrimination Provisions.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, CITY, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “CITY”) agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  CITY will comply with the Title VI List of 
Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities, as they may be amended from 
time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
Agreement. 

2. Non-discrimination:  CITY, with regard to the work performed by it during the 
term of this Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, 
national origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex (including 
sexual orientation and gender identity), age, or disability in the selection and 
retention of contractors, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment.  CITY will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination 
prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment 
practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in 
Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.  

3. Solicitations for Agreements, Including Procurements of Materials and 
Equipment:  In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation 
made by CITY for work to be performed under a subcontract, including 
procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential contractor or 
supplier will be notified by CITY of CITY’s obligations under this Agreement 
and the Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or 
national origin.  

4. Information and Reports:  CITY will provide all information and reports required 
by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will 
permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its 
facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation 
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such 
Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and instructions.  Where any 
information required of CITY is in the exclusive possession of another who fails 
or refuses to furnish the information, CITY will so certify to LESSOR or the 
Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it 
has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of CITY’s noncompliance with the 
Non-discrimination provisions of this contract, LESSOR will impose such 
sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be 
appropriate, including, but not limited to withholding payments to the CITY under 
the Agreement until the CITY complies, and/or cancelling, terminating, or 
suspending the Agreement, in whole or in part. 



 

EXHIBIT I 

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  CITY will include the provisions of paragraphs one 
through six of this Exhibit I, Section (A) in every contract, including 
procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, 
the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto.  CITY will take action 
with respect to any contract or procurement as LESSOR or the Federal Aviation 
Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if CITY becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with litigation by a contractor, or supplier because of such direction, 
CITY may request LESSOR to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of 
LESSOR.  In addition, CITY may request the United States to enter into the 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
B. Real Property Acquired or Improved Under the Airport Improvement Program.  

CITY for itself, its heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of 
the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land that 
in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described 
in this Agreement for a purpose for which a Federal Aviation Administration activity, facility, or 
program is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, 
CITY will maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements 
imposed by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Regulations listed in the Pertinent List of 
Nondiscrimination Authorities (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.  

C. Construction/Use/Access to Real Property Acquired Under the Activity, Facility 
or Program.  CITY for itself, its heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, 
as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with 
the land that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from 
participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of 
said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land, and 
the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will 
be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to 
discrimination, and (3) that CITY will furnish its services in compliance with all other requirements 
imposed by or pursuant to the List of Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities.  

D. Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities. During the 
performance of this Agreement, CITY, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination 
statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 
252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);  

ii. 49 CFR Part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The 
Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights 
Act of 1964);  

iii. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons 
displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-
aid programs and projects);  



 

EXHIBIT I 

iv. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 
27; 

v. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of age); 

vi. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 
47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, 
national origin, or sex);  

vii. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the 
scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to 
include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-
recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally 
funded or not); 

viii. Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, 
public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, 
and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by 
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR Parts 37 and 38; 

ix. The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. 
§ 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, 
and sex); 

x. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in 
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-
discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, 
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health 
or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

xi. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with 
Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin 
discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency 
(LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to 
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. 
Reg. at 74087 to 74100); and 

xii. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits 
you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 
U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

E. General Civil Rights Provision.  In all its activities within the scope of its airport 
program, the CITY agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders, and such rules as 
identified in Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities to ensure that no 
person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), 
creed, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), age, or disability be excluded from 
participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.  This provision 
is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  If the CITY transfers its 
obligation to another, the transferee is obligated in the same manner as the CITY.  The above 



 

EXHIBIT I 

provision obligates the CITY for the period during which the property is owned, used or possessed 
by the CITY and the airport remains obligated to the Federal Aviation Administration. 

F. Right of Re-entry.  In the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination 
covenants, LESSOR will have the right to terminate the Agreement and to enter, re-enter, and 
repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the Agreement had never been 
made or issued.  

G. Subcontracts.  CITY agrees that it shall insert the above six provisions (Section 
(A) through Section (F)) in any agreement by which CITY grants a right or privilege to any person, 
firm, or corporation to render accommodations and/or services to the public under this Agreement. 

 
 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
  09/2024-48 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on September 12, 2024 
 
Subject:  Authorization for the President/CEO to execute a Professional Services Agreement 

with Barich, Inc. for Information Technology Owner Liaison Review Services 
(ITOLRS) in the amount of $471,685 commencing on approval through June 30, 2025 

 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the motion stated below.  
 
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
Safety and Security 
People 
Facilities for the Future  
Customer Experience 
 
BACKGROUND 
The MoreRNO Program requires a robust information technology (IT) program that addresses 
special systems, integrations, data, security, and other low-voltage infrastructure across individual 
projects. RTAA’s Technology and Information Services (TIS) group requires IT liaison review 
services for both the design and construction phases of the Concourses, ConRAC/GTC, and 
Headquarters/Police Station at Reno-Tahoe International Airport (RNO). 
 
To support the development of the Consolidated Rental Car Center / Ground Transportation Center 
(GTC), the Central Utility Plant (CUP), and the Headquarters and New Generation A/B Concourse 
(Concourse A/B), comprehensive IT services covering communication systems, networking and 
infrastructure, security systems, passenger processing systems, and operational systems are 
required. The proposed agreement with Barich, Inc. will ensure that these IT designs are robust, 
scalable, future-proof, and coordinated between the various projects, meeting the long-term 
strategic needs of the airport. Approval of this agreement is essential to maintaining the integrity 
and efficiency of our IT infrastructure throughout the redevelopment project. 
 
This work is essential because modern airports like RNO have become intricate hubs where 
technology and transportation intersect. A robust and well-integrated IT infrastructure is critical to 
meeting operational expectations and avoiding inefficiencies or potential disruptions. By engaging 
Barich, Inc. early in the design and construction phases, the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority 
(RTAA) is proactively addressing the challenges associated with IT needs in large-scale 
development projects, ensuring that the airport's facilities are prepared to meet future growth 
demands. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
DISCUSSION 
The scope of services begins with an initial on-site discussion where the team will meet with the 
Owner and key staff members to establish effective communication, understand decisions already 
made, and align on the overall expectations of the project. This initial visit will also include site 
walks, planning, and design document collection, and discussions on IT elements that should be 
integrated into all design and construction phases. Key topics to be addressed include the impact 
of the existing IT program on the new design, roles and responsibilities of the in-house IT team, 
and how to manage IT budget elements, change management, and operational readiness. 
 
Following the initial discussions, a comprehensive document search and review will be conducted 
to obtain all necessary artifacts for planning. The team will then prepare a Design Baseline Review 
Document to ensure a consistent review and communication throughout the project. During the 
design phases, the team will engage in pre-design submittal reviews, technology reviews, 
integration planning, and design meetings. The design review will validate that the design adheres 
to the established scope, with comments provided through the formal review process. Post-design 
reviews will address identified risks, including budget, innovation, and IT project delivery impacts. 
 
During the Construction Administration phase, the team will participate as an integral part of the 
construction management team, overseeing IT-related issues such as procurement schedules, 
special system selection, and equipment placement. This phase will also involve on-site progress 
reviews, coordination meetings, and preparation of IT construction assessment reports. The team 
will also be responsible for testing and commissioning activities, including oversight of Site 
Acceptance Testing (SAT), User Acceptance Testing (UAT), and integration testing. Finally, as 
part of the Operational Readiness, Activation, and Transition (ORAT) process, the team will 
ensure that all systems are operational, staff are trained, and all documentation is updated, ensuring 
a smooth transition to full operational status. 
 
Two vendors submitted their qualifications for this role, and Barich Inc. was selected to provide 
the IT Owner Liaison Review Services. As a leading firm in airport technology, Barich Inc. has 
extensive experience with the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA) through their work on the 
RTAA Digital Transformation Plan and project management support for the Common Use 
technology implementation. 
 
Barich Inc. has designated a consultant and designer with 17 years of experience across various 
airports in North America, including RNO, to lead this initiative. This individual recently 
completed a similar liaison and design review role at San Diego International Airport (SAN) and 
Orlando International Airport (MCO). 
 
In addition to the lead consultant, Barich Inc. has assembled a team of seven subject matter experts 
for this project. Their expertise spans airport operations, construction, business analysis, IT 
infrastructure, communications technology, and optimizing technology investments. The team 
members have experience working with numerous airports, including Harry Reid International 
Airport (LAS), San Francisco Bay Oakland International Airport (OAK), Phoenix Sky Harbor 
International Airport (PHX), Hollywood Burbank Airport (BUR), San Francisco International 
Airport (SFO), Raleigh-Durham International Airport (RDU), Minneapolis-Saint Paul 
International Airport (MSP), and Toronto Pearson International Airport (YYZ), among others. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The proposed contract for IT services will be executed on a time and materials basis with a not-to-
exceed fee structure. For the remaining 2024/2025 fiscal year, professional fees are estimated at 
$447,685, with additional expenses projected at $24,000, bringing the total to $471,685. This fee 
structure is based on a full-time equivalent (FTE) of 1.2 and a blended hourly rate of $200. The 
contract includes a 3% annual rate escalation to accommodate the multi-year nature of the 
program. Invoicing will occur monthly for work completed and associated expenses, with receipts 
provided for reimbursable costs. 
 
For subsequent years, the fiscal impact will vary depending on the level of activity. Estimated 
costs are as follows: 

• Year 2 (FY26): $624,000 in professional fees plus $48,000 in expenses (FTE of 1.5, 
blended rate of $200) 

• Year 3 (FY27): $499,200 in professional fees plus $24,000 in expenses (FTE of 1.2, 
blended rate of $200) 

• Year 4 (FY28): $499,200 in professional fees plus $24,000 in expenses (FTE of 1.2, 
blended rate of $200) 

• Year 5 (FY29): $499,200 in professional fees plus $24,000 in expenses (FTE of 1.2, 
blended rate of $200) 

• Year 6 (FY30): $249,600 in professional fees plus $12,000 in expenses (FTE of 1.2, 
blended rate of $200 for 6 months) 
 

Each year’s fees will be reviewed 30 days before the contract's completion, allowing RTAA to 
adjust or terminate them as necessary. The RTAA retains the option to extend, adjust, or terminate 
services annually. 
 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
Finance and Business Development Committee 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
“Move to authorize the President/CEO to execute a Professional Service Agreement with Barich, 
Inc. for Information Technology Owner Liaison Review Services during the Design & 
Construction phases of the MoreRNO program, in an amount not to exceed $471,685 commencing 
on approval through June 30, 2025.” 
 



 
 
 

Board Memorandum 
  09/2024-52 

 
In Preparation for the Regular Board Meeting on September 12, 2024 
 
Subject:  Request for approval of President/CEO Performance Goals and Measures for  
 Fiscal Year 2024-2025  
 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the Proposed Motion stated below.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to Daren Griffin’s contract, the Board is required to annually set the performance goals 
and the criteria against which the President/CEO’s performance will be measured for the ensuing 
fiscal year. Mr. Griffin’s performance with respect to these goals provides the basis for the 
Board’s evaluation of Mr. Griffin’s performance and the award of a bonus, if any, beginning July 
1, 2025.   
 
DISCUSSION   
President/CEO Griffin, looking forward at upcoming projects and direction of the RTAA and in 
consultation with the Board Officers, developed the attached Goals and Performance Measures 
for FY 2024/2025.   
 
There are three primary goals, each with attendant measures.  The primary goals address airport 
infrastructure, airport operations, and organizational culture. Each goal is weighted.  Following 
the outlined goals, Mr. Griffin has listed “How” the goals will be accomplished.  The proposed 
goals and measures reflect Mr. Griffin’s priorities and vision for the organization based on his 
time with the RTAA, and are intended to facilitate the Board’s review of Mr. Griffen’s 
performance. 
 
A copy of the proposed CEO Goals and Performance Measures for FY 24/25 is attached as 
Exhibit A.  A copy of the CEO’s employment agreement and amendment thereto are attached as 
Exhibit B. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact relative to the action to be taken by the Board at this time. The action 
to be taken is solely the setting of the goals and measures and attaching weights to those goals. 
At some point after July 1, 2025, the Board will be asked to consider a discretionary Bonus of 
up to 20% of Mr. Griffin’s then applicable annual Base Salary and the amount of the Bonus, if 
any, shall be determined in the sole discretion of the Board based on Mr. Griffin’s achievement 
of the approved Goals and Measures. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
COMMITTEE COORDINATION 
None 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
Following deliberation, the Trustees may proceed with a motion in the following general form: 
“Move to approve the President/CEO’s Goals and Performance Measures, together with the 
weight of each goal, for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-2025.” 
 



 

   
 

RTAA President/CEO FY 24-25 Performance Goals and Measures 
 

GOAL #1: 
Develop and Maintain Airport Infrastructure to Meet Current and Future Demand 

Weight:  40%    Strategic Plan Initiatives Priority Nos. 3, 4, 5, 6 and 8 
1 New Gen A&B: Oversee the progress of the New Gen A&B element of MoreRNO. In particular, oversee 

the design effort of the new Central Utility Plant (CUP), and 90% design of the replacement of existing 
Concourses B and C (New Concourses A&B). Bid and begin construction on S. RON apron. Continue 
coordination efforts with AAAC and airline representatives. Lead the advocacy effort inside the FAA for 
an award of significant grant funding for the project. Align local, state and federal officials in visible 
support for this application. Implement Board Resolution 552 in the project and promote the value of 
public art in enhancing the airport environment.  

2 The HQ: Oversee the 60% and final design efforts, and successfully identify a project scope that is 
financially achievable. Coordinate timing and operational needs with New Gen A & B, and begin the 
construction phase in Spring, 2025. Implement Board Resolution 552 in the project and promote the 
value of public art in enhancing the airport environment.  

3 The GTC: Advance the GTC to 100% design. Ensure construction progress for enabling projects and 
subsequent GTC components are in compliance with Master Ground Lease and Final Agreement. 
Implement Board Resolution 552 in the project and promote the value of art in enhancing the airport 
environment.  

4   Reno-Stead Airport (RTS) Land Development: In support of RTAA’s Strategic Priority to develop new 
infrastructure to address growing market demands in the region and to generate incremental revenue 
for the Authority, oversee the collaboration efforts with federal, state, and local authorities on 
opportunities to accelerate development of new facilities at RTS. 

5 Reno-Stead Airport (RTS) Master Plan:  In preparation for an RTS Master Plan Study kick off in FY24/25, 
oversee the qualifications-based selection effort to hire a consultant team, achieve FAA agreement on a 
negotiated scope of work and fee, award maximum scope possible using federal funding sources and if 
necessary, award supplemental scope using airport revenues, based on RTAA strategic priorities. 
Consider community participation opportunities and alignment with other regional planning efforts 
connected to RTS and lead efforts to encourage and support meaningful engagement with community 
members, airport users, and partner agencies. 

6 VALE Project (sustainability): Oversee the execution of the RNO FY25 VALE (Voluntary Airport Low 
Emissions) Project. This project consists of installing both pre-conditioned air (PCA) and gate 
electrification (electric ground power units or eGPUs) at the 23 gates at RNO. The new energy efficient 
equipment will significantly reduce jet fuel consumption and other greenhouse gases generated from 
parked aircraft’s onboard auxiliary power units. Ensure close collaboration with the airlines, airport duty 
managers, maintenance crews and the contractors. Complete this project by the end of FY25. 

GOAL #2: 
Maintain an Industry Leading Airport Operations and Public Safety Operation 

Weight:  30%    Strategic Plan Initiatives Priority Nos. 4, 6, 7 and 8 
1 Contract for Fire Services:  Complete negotiations with the City of Reno for the contracting of all fire 

services.  If deemed appropriate, and approved by the board, execute the transition of all fire services 
to the City of Reno.  The plan will address the following: 

• Operational requirements – Must meet all FAR Part 139 and Uniform Fire Code requirements 
• Organizational challenges – Protect current staff and ensure a harmonious and seamless 

transfer to the City of Reno 
 



 
 

Page | 2  
 

 

2 Technology:  Oversee the Implementation of state-of-the-art technologies to improve operational 
readiness, response and oversight through common use (SITA Airport Management System), airfield 
management (EASE) (Halliday Technologies) Continue to evaluate and implement where appropriate 
additional technologies to include ADSB and UAS detection systems. 

3 
 
 

Safety Management Systems (SMS) and Airport Worker Screening (AWS) Federal Mandates:  In 
response to federal mandates to stand up a Safety Management Systems program, and an Airport 
Worker Screening program, complete the reorganization of the Operations and Public Safety division 
without adding additional FTEs. 

• Convert Emergency Manager position to SMS/EM Manager 
o Begin implementation of the FAA approved SMS implementation plan. 

• Convert a portion of the Landside Staff to Airport Operations Specialist qualified front curb 
enforcement. 

• Implement additional required screening of airport workers. 
GOAL #3: 

Lead the Development of an Organizational Culture of High Performance and Inclusion 
Weight: 30%    Strategic Plan Initiatives Priority Nos. 7 and 8 

1 Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion: As we enter our DEI program year 2, continue to work with Executive 
Team and a DEI facilitator on outcomes include the following:   

• Revise and expand information regarding DEI into our internal culture guide to complement 
initiatives undertaken last year. 

• Continue to expand DEI efforts in recruiting and onboarding of new employees to include 
publishing a public-facing culture guide that highlights the RTAA’s efforts. 

2 Performance Management: Continue the roll out of the various features of our new performance 
management system:  

• Conduct training for CSP & Management on self-appraisals, as well as how to write a “successful” 
review by May 2025.    

• Coordinate an additional training program that supports our new performance system and 
culture.  

• Provide CSP with an informational session on the “why” of performance management.  This will 
take place through June 30, 2025. 

• Leadership Development:  Spearhead the Leadership Development Program (formerly 
Succession Planning) and ensure that each critical role has a clear and executable plan. 

3 Air Service Development: To optimize RNO potential, oversee the development and execution of the FY 
2025 Annual Air Service Strategic Roadmap which will be aligned with a robust marketing strategy to 
stimulate passenger demand and fill available seats. By partnering with local, regional, and state 
entities, we will pinpoint Northern Nevada's air service needs for economic growth and tourism. Lead 
regional air service development efforts, including the Regional Air Service Corporation (RASC) and 
Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority (RSCVA)’s. Cultivate strong airline relationships through 
active engagement at industry conferences, and hosting airline executives in the Reno-Tahoe area 
showcasing Northern Nevada's economic growth and tourism opportunities.  These opportunities will 
allow them to network with local leaders and gain insights into our region. Commercial Business and air 
service teams will collaborate with AFCO, developer selected to grow cargo through land development, 
to identify market demand and understand the cargo flow in and out of Northern Nevada. 

 



rüNIIII, O YI\{EN'I' AGITE E MENT

, i¿.
'I'HIS IIMPLOYÛIENT ÀGRAI MIINT ("Agleementr') is ente¡:ecl t¡is?X:1 day of -\r,-.r/...-,2020, by and between the Rcno-Tahoe Airport Àufholity ("RTAA"), a qr:asi-municipal rurpotution

(liercínaftcl callcd "lìmployel"), and Daten Giiflìn (hereinaftcr: callccl "Ernployce',).

WTTNIISSETH:

\ryI{ERII AS, limployer i s a q ua.si -rnun ic i p al corpora ti on;

WHEREAIi, Emlrloycr clo.sires to employ lìmployee as its Pr:esjcJent/CËO on thc l'ollorving tcrms
anct conditions;

WI{ElttrÄS, Er:rployee dcsircs to accept such employilent with lhtployer'olt the f'ollorving ter.rns
ancl conclitions;

N0\ry' TÍII'JI{.lrlll()llltr, lltuployee ancl Ernployer, caoh in consiclelation of the covelants aucl
mutual agreernonls hcrein corüainccì, agtee as f'ollows:

T. SERVTCJITS TO IIE I¡I,RTTOIIMITI)

Er[ployer irereby employs Enrploycc, anci ]inrployee her:eby accepts ernployment by the E¡rployer,
as lìmployer's PresidenfC]:O r.vith fìrli authority Rrr the rranagement of lìmployer's allairs ilclucli¡g
withou[ limitatiolr those dutjes, seivices ancl rccluirements sct ft¡rth in thc l!)mployer.'s lrylaws, ancl subiect
to thc limitation's spcciliecl by statute, olclinance, t'cgulation, resr¡lution ¿urcl action of l.)nrployer's J:ìoarå of
Truslccs ("Board") rrr other govetniug documents of Employer. A.ioþ clescriptio¡ for the Presicle¡t/C[O
position is attachcd hcre¿o a.s l,ixhibit ",À." Lhnployee aglees that during the tenn of this Agreemcnt
Iimployee r,vill devote ilis bost clïorts to l;inployeL, ancl shall faitlrfully a¡d to the best of E¡ployoc's skill
ancl abiiity perfbftil such executivc, managerial ol acjministrative cluties as ltrriployer ¡r¿rv ,speoifl lìurn
tirne to time, ancl shall at all finics ciilìgcntly and loyally scrve ancl encleavoL to fiufher the ilterests of
.Lhuployer'. Lhnploycc acknowleciges and understands Ernploycr's ïloarcl shal,l be res¡:o¡sible fbr". rvithout
lìrnitation, esratrlishing policy fbl the direction and crperation of ìlmployer,

2. ]'ltRM

Thc terr¡l ('oTorm") of this Agreement shall be f'or a periocl of' five (5) year:s, cclmmencing on
Ä-rrgust 3,202t ancl sh¿rll lemair¡ in cffccl. until August2,?.025 or urfii telminated by eiihel1:ar.ty.

Notwithstarding fhc above and except as specificnlly set fbrúh below, the parties recognizc
that Iimployee is au "ÄT WILLtt employee ¿rnrl serves at the pleasur.e of the llo*rcl in conformance
rvith l3y-Law #9170 of the Reno-T¿rhoc Airporf Authority Bylaws of the Iìoard ofl'['nrstees. Ttris
mcans that both fhe lloarcl and/or lhnployee cnu tcrruinate Ern¡lloyect.s employment fbr any reâson
or f<rr no rcason, suhject tr¡ the r.equirements of Sectiou 4, lrclow.

,1-
I ó090943. I

EXHIBIT B

lkolacek
Highlight



3. SALARY AND BNNICIì'I'I'S

3.1 Salarl'. Cotrunencing August i,z1}},llnployer sliall pay Employcc an annual salary oi.
Tlvo Iluridl:ecl ancl lrighty-five T)rousanci ¿rnrl no/I00 ($285,000.00X1h; "ilas* 

-Saiar.y") 
i' cc¡ual

installnrcnts, less all app.licable tax witliholclings, on the regulady scheduled payclays of'Er*ploycr..

3.1.1 Salary lncreases. Ërnployee shall be eligible firr annual increases i¡ the Sala¡y i¡
the solc discretion of lÌrnployer's llo¿ncl.

3.1.2 Bonus. Ernployee may be eligible lot' a discrctionar¡,, non-mandatory cash bonus
(the "llonus") begirulittg July 1,2021, (rvhich bonus shall not be prorate<i to ¿iccount f'or less tlian a full
yezlt's bonrts proYided.Limplo¡,es co¡nmçnces ein¡rloyment by September l, Z1¡1),and continui'g o' the
satne date each yeal thereafter clur'.ing the Ënrployee's employmed uncler this Agreer:lcnl as adclitional
compcnsation for lìtnployee's services lenclel'ecl. Thc clecision to award a Bonus shalt be in tho sole
cliscretion of the lirn¡rloyer's lloald. 'lÏre Bonns, iL'any, shall be up to 10% of Employee's then applicable
aturual Base Salaly ¿ind the amount of the Bonus, if auy, shall bc detennined in the sole discretio' of the
Ernployer's Board <lf Tlustees basccl on [rnplo1.ee,s achicvement ofperformance criteria ancl goals
cstablislied by Ernplol'er's Board. Iimployee's pertbnlance for' the porpn.* ol'determining thJbon's will
b0 i:eviewed on a f-rsc¿rl yeur bzrsis (r'Y202012021,1ìY20212022,FY 202.2/2023,Fy202312024 and,
FY2012412025, res¡reetivcly). Enrployec slrall participate in the ar¡1u¿1l rcvici.v a1<l shall ccxrperate with
rcasonahlc lcque'sts macle by the Boald duling thc review lll'ocess. ]'þe llo¡us shall be su¡jcct to all
applicablc withholclings and sinrilal'taxes, ancl.sliall bc paiA within thir,ty days (30) after aivar.cl.

3.I.:l llelocatÍon pnchagc. Er:rployee rvili rcceive ¿r one-tirne relocation allos,ancc not to
exceecl Twenty-Jìivc Thousand Dollals ($25,000.00) to cover: expcnses incurr.ecl by ì:mployee relatecl to
relocatirtg to the Reno/Sparks a1"ea li'om his oument location lbr reasonable a¡<1 cu.stomãry r,elocation
experlses, including rnovelneut of householcl goocls; housing search tr:ip for Employee anri
spouse/sigrtificant other; tempol'at'y loclging at prior ancl new resiclencc not to cxcccd one morrth;
tcml"rorary storage of householcl goods at prior alicl new residence not to exceecl one mont¡; transpor.tation
cr:sls, me¿ils, loclging aucl l:elated expcnses lequilc<lto movc Employee aricl clepe¡dents to ,,"uu r"ii,l*rr.r.
Such expcnscs will he reimbur.sed rvith supporting rcccipts.

3.1.4 lìeir¡tbursenrenú of rclocation allowrncc. Shoulcl lirnployee resign or.be
terr:riuated fbt' causc within I 2 months o1'statt date, Ëmpioyee will be require cl to lepay wit6in nincty (90)
clay.s of'the resignation or tct'miltatir:n, the fllll arnount ol"the relocalion aljt.lrvanr:e r.eimbLlrsed to
lilrployee.

3,2 llcnclits. Employce shall bc eligíble fol tlie fbllowing be¡elits:

3,2.1 Insut'ancc Covct'age. W-itlr lespect to litb insurance on Employco, Employee slrall
receivc lifb insurance of two times llase Salary along wittr Irive 'I'housancl ($5000,0-O¡ iur Er.pli,,yðe's
spouse and onc Thousand ($ì1000.00) f'or eaoh cliilcl ol'trrnployee.

3'2,2 Auto llxpense. Þ,rnployer shall trlay Employee a nronthly antonrgbile allowancc o[
Six I'Ilrnch:ed Dollars ($6OO.OO¡ pcr nronth. llnployee shall be lcsponsible for. all exper$es incurrecj
Ie)ating 1o the velúolc inclutling bnt not limited to ga.s, rnaintenance, taxcs, insnïance, ii"ens* f'ees ¿inci

a
r(i099s4.ì. J



I'egistl'atiotl, Such automobile strall be legistered in the name of .bnçloyee, not Er'ployer, Since
lÌnrployee orvus at¡d/ot'¡najutains such antornobile in his incJiviclual .upoåiry, and uot in iris capaoity as
Plesident/ClËo of'Ëlnpioyer, Em¡rloyel' assurres no liabilily with lcspecit'r t't.ti* ar¡tomobiie, other tla' thc
monlfrly automobile allowance plovidccl f,ol by this section 3.2.2

3.2'3 llusiness Ex¡tenses. Ernpioyel shall pay ol reirnbursc Ðmployec f'or: all reasonaSle
bttsiness and travel expenses incurrecl.by F)nrplclycc in ieitbnüiug the dutic.s llelcuncler', subjcct to
Ittaintenanco of appÏopr:jate cloctlmsntation by Enrployee arrcl revie'n, a¡tl approvat by the Chairnran or
Vice-CLraiLnlan oI llnrploycr's i]oal'cl. l]usiness exponscs, incluclíng prof'essiàiral ¿ges ¿rnd nlem6erships,
shall be paicl or rcilnbursed jn accorclatrce wifh Employcr's customàry ¡rractices. E'rploycc agrccs to
promptl¡t sublnit aruy ancl a1l cxFenses to J-im¡rloycr for leinltrursoment, aricl tç provicie ntty Ao"urnätation
that lJnrployer rnay rcquest ol rcquirc in older to substanl.iate thc oxpense i¿,r. wtrich E¡rployee secks
rcitnbursernent. Ilnrployec unclcrstancls iliat fhe lailule to prnrn¡ltly submit such opå,,*". fìr::
t'eimbursemettt, ot: to ¡I'ovicìe an¡' clocumcnt¿rtion leasonably requested by'Ernployg,, rÌlay I:e grouncls fcr.
the dcnial of reirnbursement of au expense.

3.2.4 Merlical, Ðental, Vision, Long-term DisabilÍty Insur.ancc, Illexihle I25 lrlan
Covcrngc, Dcferrctl C'ornpensation, arttl othcr Bcncfits. ììmployee sjrall receive rneclical, pr.esc'iptio',
dctfal, vision ancl long-ter:m clisability insurance at n<-l cxpense to .l.ìnrployee. Covsiod, eligible
clependetrts seelcing health insurancc wilt have their ¡:reiniunrs paicl ¿tt BSrtrc by Etrployer, Empioycr:will
pay COIÌ]ì.'\ coverage pretniutns until l-:hrrployee is eligible to parlioipate in thl Liurployer:,s heaitn þlan,

3,2.5 I'ublic Employccs Rctircmeltt Systenr ßËRS) Contribution. Iirnployer slrall
pay 100% ol'thc retirement contribtltions to the Ncvacla ììlblic l,lmployee 's Retilemcnf Systern(nÍ,ilìS) for
ììnrployec np to a salary cap set annually by pERS.

3.2.6 Ern¡rloycr Contt'ibution to llcfcrlcd Cornpensation PIan. Ernployer has a 457
plalr availalrle to Ernployee upon thc start of hi.s ernploynrent. Ernploye¡ shall make no contr.ib*tions tcr
thc l)cfelleci Cornpensation Plan,

3.2.7 Workers' Courpensation llrsulance. l:*nployee is covoîcd by Wor.kers'
Oornpensation Insutancc as tuanclate<l by Stale larv. Emplo¡ler: pay.s tlrafrriì cost of this illsuLânue.

3.2.8 Brnploycc .Assisúance l)rograrn. Ernployec ancl his rìcperrcle¡ts are eligì¡le lìrr up
io l0 "family" visits pel'year to an apprt;veci iÌmployec Assísiance Prograrn provicler at the expe'sc of
Errryloyot', subjeci to auy tequit'etneni-s irrryroscd hy Un4lloycr's be¡ellts prlvla,:i1s¡

3.2.9 Vacntion l.,eave¡ Eur¡rloyee shall be entitleclto 19.5 days of vac¿rtion leavcperye¿ìr,
f'or the first äve (5) ycars of service. Such vacatiou leavc is accruecl annually. If vac¿itio¡ 1cavc ¿rccl.ral
cxceeds 520 hours at thc cncl <il'thc last pay period of any fisorLl year, Limployee will bc paid for all
vacation leave over this arnount ¿rt that time.

3.2.10 Siclt Leave. Ernployec shall bc entitled to 15 clays of sick lcave ¡rer year. Sucli siclc
leave is ¡rccnrcd annually and is sub.fect lo unlimitccr acq.uai.

3.2.I1 Ifolitlay Leavei lirul:loyee sliall be cntitlccl k¡ 13 l.loliday.s per yezu. irr addition to
vacation ancl sick leavc

-J-
I(109994.ì,1



3.2.12 Accrucrl Vacation L,eitve. Ernplo¡,es,shall be entillecl to be compensated f'or.all
accruecl brtt tmr.tsecl vacafiou but uot Síclc leave ol Holiclay leavc at thr: conclusion ollthjs Ag:eement at the
Ilmployee's then Base Salary,

3,3 T'uition lleimllursement, Lirnployee is eìígitrle fbr hritioli reirubursement for, ooqrses
rpl¿tecl to his crnploymont or clcveloprncnt at lìmpìoycr,.

'l'uition reitnbursemctrt is available f'or nonnal and customary expeuses (exct>pt
fixcd ccltiiprnent) associated with a class, semitrar, couf'erence, certilication
pl'ogralll, ol sÍucly coulso that is useful for the enrplovee's cun'ent perl'ounance, bril
is uot a minimurn rlualilîoation ftn' l.he posiLion nol lequirecl to maintain acceptable
job perforrnanoc. 'l'hc leirnbursemcnt is avail¿rble for: any coul'se begun in a fiscal
year up to a utaximurn of $1,500, The Chairnian of thc Boarcl of Tìr¡stecs in
coot'clination with the Vice-President of' I{uuran Resoulces will malcc thc
appropt'iate cteteurinal.ion, ìn their sole disc.retion, as to allowable cxtrlenses u,hun
J:implcryee tecluests pre-appr:oval of a pafiiculaï cerlification Çoulse or semÌnar,

I

a Arty class, cettification corìLse, conlèrence or semin¿n 1'ccs ol ot.lrcr nolmzil arrtl
ottslomary chat'ges paicl f'or tlolir scholarship, veteran's benefîts, grarrts-in-aid, or
othe:: sout'ces aro not cligible fcx reit¡lrurselnerrt. I{eimlrtuser¡ent is only possible
f'or ¡;rogratns ol' stucly that have been approved l'or tr-rition I'eimbnrsement in
atlvanc;e try 1he Chairman cl.f thc Board in coorcliliation with thc Dilector of lh¡man
Resoulces; attcn<lcd, cr:mplcted ancl/ol passccl (a gradc of rrcrr or helter ol a pass);

taken ftoln a t'ecogúzed ¿urd/ol acoleditecl sclxrol, instilution or professional
association; ancl the employee has provicled all neçossat'y docurnentation about
costs and successfr,rl attenclance/completion.

'I'he proglam of shrdy and all lelatecl wor'lt will nolmally be completccl on thc
Employee's own time unless the Ch¿rimran of the lloard has cletelmined, in writing,
l:eforc thc coru'sc is approved, that the corÌrse would be of siguificarrt benefit for'
Employcr. In thjs casc, l1mployor may approve the nse of iimitecl rvodc tirne release
(up to threc hours of lraicf work tirne) cluling the ìimployeer's rrrin al wotking horirs.

Except as otherwisc statecl helein or requireci by ap¡:licablc law, Emtrlloycl has no obligation to
establish atry ltringe Benefit plan nol in existence on fhe d¿rte hereof or to provide to Ernploycc any bcnefi t.

¡rlan othclwisc available to it.s exeurpt erntrlloyees or:'liustees. Any benefiLs no[ ex¡rlessly include<lin this
Agroetnetrl ilrough thcy may be inclucfecl in the Management Guiclelincs or other h,rnployee bençfit plans,
ì ncludin g (iain- S halc, are intcn tion al ly cxcÌ uci cd .

a

-4
J 6Lì999,1 l. I



4. TERMIN,A.TION

4,1 ll-errnin?lifin for Cause

4.1.1 Generally. lhnployer tray intmeclialely telminate tfús Agtccrnent Llpon thc
occllüellce of any o1'the following cvents in whìch casc limployee shall only be eligible fi¡r those \\¡ages
and benefits required to bc paicl by statc law in cflcr:t at thc timc:

4.1.1.1 Ernployco:
i. Is convioted of; ol plcads guilty ot'nok> conterrdclc to, a felony or åny act

aruoutrling to emllezzlcrncnf, fi'aucl, or theÍ't ol involving moral trupitgcle
(whether or not against Ernployer or another enrployee of ì:mployer).

ä. Is convicted ol; or plcads guilty or nolo contenclere to, in a corut of'
competent juristliotion, a lèlclny resulting in death or substantial bodily or
¡lsychological harttl lt¡. ot'other act of tuolal fltrpifude harming, aüy pefsoil.

iij, Engagcs in condtlct demonstrably ancl rnaterially iqjulious to the plopelty,
bu.siness, goodwill ancl repritatìorr of Euiployer-;

iv. Commits selious woilc-relatecl missonduct, including, but not linritcci to,
gr:oss negl i gen ce oÌ, intentional il legal conducl.

v. Illegally uses narcotics or othcr cotrtrolled substance.s.

vi. Intentionally injtrles ot assaults any person in thc course of his lrei:forrnance
of services f'or Employer fhat is not.iustified Lrmlcl the circumstances,

vii. Ðiscloses to unattthorized persons cclnfidc¡rtial or plopriety inf'olmation
relating to En4lloyer, its govern¿lnoç, ot' operations,

viii. coninits ury act, whjch clcalcs ancl unteasonably offensive work
envilomncnt flor crr4rlt)yocs or patrons of lirnployer.

ix. Fails, alÌei: rccciving thilty (30) day.s arivance wlitten nr:tioe fiorn ll¡rployer.,
to cure any blcach of this Agt'eement by fi}nployee, including without
lìrnitation atty violation ol any policy or ploceclule of lìmployerJ or ally
b¡:cach ol stzrtutr:ry or comfiloll law cluty

x. Lirtgages in concluct that constìtules a r,villftil viol¿rtir:n of the est¿rblishctl

wjtlcn polices o.r prncedures ofl'l'Àz\ legarding the contluct of jts

employees, i n clucling .¡rolicies legarding scxual harassmenl of enrp l oy ees

ancl use of iltegal cÌnrgs or substances.

xi. Commits any unethical conduct in vioiation of Scction 5.3,

5
l(,099943.1



4,2, '.fer¡ni¡UJtion upon l)eath, T'his Agleement sirall automaticnliy telminate upon tlie death
crf .hhriployee, and Lhrployer shall n.ot be obligatecl to pay the estate, famil¡,, heirs ol any other per.son
clainting utrclet' Iinrployee rìny collrpells¿rtion or clisability income ibl his services to En'rployer which
woulcl havo bccu tìuc to Ernployee aftet his death, except for accruecl salar:y ancl vacation leave.

4.3, Ter'¡nination unonDisabilitt'

4,3.1 Detnifion. "I)isabiliiy" shall have tlie sanle ÌÌro¿ìning as thc dclurition of
"'I.)isabilily" putsuilnt to any policy of disaì.rility insur¿urce cauiccl by Employcr fbr.thc bcnefit crf Hrnploycc
in fblce at thc time of such l)isability, or, if rio such clisabÍlity policy of insurance is tlien in f'or.oe,

"I)isabilily" shall ntean the inability of limployee to provide ninety percent (90%) of the avelage level ol'
tìrne cluring a continrtcxr.s tht'ec (3) month perioil ("j)etelnination Periocf"), by l.eason of illness, accide¡t
or othet'mcntal ol physical infirmìty reasonably expected to be of inclefinite dru'ation, at the end of rvhich
Dctculiination Period Employec shall bs clcomed to bc Di.sablecl.

4.3.2 Tc{minatign Uegn Disabilitv. In" Íhc cvcnl- Employer fincls ll.rnployec to bc
Disal:lecl, within the mezuring of ttris Agrccmcnt, this Aglecrncnt shail aulomalic¿rily f.er.minatc as ol'the
date firnployee is cleemed to [:c .Disabled and Ernployer shall not be obligaterl to lray the Ernployoùl or ar]y
other person clairniug uudel lÌrnployee alry cotq)ensation ol' clisability incorne fol lús servioes to
Llnrployer except ftrt' accruer{ salary ancl vacatiorr leave; howeveL, any conmlercially ftinclecl clisability
insrtt'ancc benclit shall continuc to tho cxtcnt proviclecl undet such insnrance colitract notwithstandilg s¡ch
tcl'nrination, If Ernployer lirrils linrployce not to be I)isahled within the meaning of this z\,greernent, then
the ernployment of Enrployee shall contirlrrc.

4.4 Tcrurinaúion without Cause.

4.4,1 Ily limployer. Irmployel rnay tertnirtate this Âgleement r,vithout oaulse, at any tirne.
lf strch tetmination occttrs Urnployer shall pay Ernployee severaûce in an anroluit ec¡ual to six (6) nio¡ths
of limirloyec's l3asc salaly along with all accrued, unusecl vacation leave.

4.4.2 By lt}nployee. F,rnployee may termin¿rte this .Agreernent wilhout cause at any time
nricl Ern¡lloycr shalI puy till aocrucd l]asc Salary ancl accn¡ccl, nnused vacation lcavc through limployee's
noticed temrinalion date or upon such shol'Lcr noticc as dc{emrinccl. by thc llmployer's Tlo¿u,d.

4,5 Terrniu¿rtion Äctivitics

Iirtployee will assist in cornpleting the separation checklist ancl exit interview ancl
ptomptly ïetutrt all RTAA i.ssued cquipmetrt, keys, carcls, iclentification barlges, lockers, computers,
vchÍclcs, ilagcls, tclopltones and simil¿r items to the appropriatc official(s). llmployee agl'ees that, upon
terntittation uf'his ernploytrent for any tÇason, Iic will cer"tify in wrÍting that all clala ancl property of
Employer has been retut'necl and tnt letained by Eurployce, Em¡rlcycc shall also complete all necessary
fbrrls so that the persounel action effecting thc re siguation or tcrmination can be ¡rrocessecl.

""6
I 609994J. I



5. I)I'1'I¡IS ANI) (}BI.,IGÄ'|ION,S OF EMIILOYEE

5.1 Exúe¡rt of Serviccs, Iirnployce âgrees that the cluties and services to be pelfbi'rnecl by
Hrnployee shall be perfcrrmed cxclusivcly f<rr Enr¡lloyel and that Jimployee serves at the clirection and
pleasure of the Board,

5.2 PolÍcies altd Proccdurcs, ln atklition to thc tcms llcroín, Empl<iyee ag¡'ccs to bc bouncl by
Iirnplciyet''s policies zurd procedures as they rnay bc aurended by Ernployer fiom timo to tirnc, In thc cvent
thc tcrttrs in this -r\gleeme:rt conf'lict with Ðnrployer's policies ancl procechues, the telms herein sliall tal<c
prcceclence, Limployee acknowleclges having reacl l1,mployer's policies, procedures and manuals ancl
agt'oos tc abidc b¡' tTre $ailre) incluclitrg but not limifed to l-ìinplclyer's policy of prohiliiting persoual use of'
Employer''s ol'edit o¿u:rls.

5.3 Ethical Conduct'. Thc paltics agt'ee that limployee shall perfonn the Services for
Lìmployer and shall conclucl liimself at a1l tirncs in strict accorclance with the cthical ancl prcfessional
staudards of the Nevacia State Hthics Cotrunission and the provisions of thc Ncvacla Elhics in Ciovernment
l,arv. Shoulcl any of the afbreurentioued be violated Employel rnay ternún¿rte this Aglccmcnt by written
nciticc of cancellation, which shall be efïective imruedìately upon clelively to Employee .

5.4 Compliance rvith Laws, 'I'he palties âgree that Employee shall per,fornr the Selvices lor
.liniploycr and shall co¡lduct hinrself at all tinles in strÍct accorilance with all applicable laws of the Unitcd
States and the Statc ol'Ncvacla, ancl all rules, regula{ions, policies ancl c¡:iteria establishecl by the Employer-
fi'r"rm tirne to tinre, r'elcv¿rnt to Eniploycc's pollor.mancc ol'thc Servjcos.

(t. INDEMNIFICATION

lÌmployel agl'ees to release ancf clischarge Employee and shall inderruúfy, hold hzu'mless ancl
<lcfcnd Employee against all liabilities, losses, demancls, claims, acconnts, actions ancl ptoceedings arisirrg
fir:tn acts or ilcoisions maclo by Ernployee whìlc pelf'ormirig the .services fbi'iJmployer to tire firltest extent
pclrnitted by law, but nol wil.h lospcc:l to olaims by f:inrployel againsr Employee f'or. acts of dishonesty,
fi'aucl, intentional misconduct, g,ross negii¡¡cncc, clirninal acts or ultra vjlcs acts. Iimployee agrees to
lelease and clischat'ge bmployer, zurd shall hold harmiless ancl inclcmrii.þ trmployer far ail ljabilities, losses,
clemancis, claims, accounts, actions ancl proceedilrgs arising or lesulting fi'orn Enrploycc brcaching lhis
Agreenrent fbr'1ì'aurl ol intentionaI illegal ooncluct.

7. M ÍSCIìLLÄNIdOI]S

1,1 Assignmcnt. IÌxcepl- ¿rs othelwise provided helein. ):imployee may not and slrall not
assign any lights ol delegate any <lutics undcl this Agreement.

7.2 Noúices. All notices, dernancls, rcquost$, anrl other cornrrnrnicaticxrs rec¡uirecl or pennittecl
to be servecl on or given to eithel party by the othel shail l:e in writing ancl shall bc <lclivcretl personally or.
lly tJnitecl States mail, first class postage 1l'epaicl, certified ot legistered nrail, return rcccipt reclucstccl.
Noticcs shall be acldressed as follows:

7
r6099943.t



If to llnployer: If to Brnployee:

RTAA

Attn: Chailman of' lÌrar:<l

1.3 Confidentialitv ¡rnd Restrictive Covenauls. Hnrployee recognizcs that by leason of
pel:foüning setvices lci:: Iinrploycr, h)nploycc will acqnire conficlential a¡d pròpl'ietary i¡ftiimalion an¿
tt'ade secl'els ooncet'ning thc opcraiion ol.'Enrployer:. the ilse or clisclo.snr:e of whictr 

"uul,l 
.urr*ltrnploycr.

suhstantíal ancl iuepat'able loss aud hal'tr¡ tll¿rt coulcl not lrc reaclily calculatecl and fbr which no re*ecl1, 41
law u'rruld be acleqlate. Accorclitrgly, Ëmployee covcnant.s and aglccs rvitlr lÌmployel.that he will not at
any tìmc both dur"irrg arid a{Ìer the teun of ttris Agleernent, rlircctly ol inrlirectÎy, clisclose auy secr.et or
confidelltial irlftrrrrlafion lhat lie may leíiln, oL, in performance r)l'tho scrvice.s hercil for o¡ on [rehalf of
Iimployer, use such infotmation in a nratrnel detrirnentnl to tho interests of Employer, exccpt with the
prior rvritten consent of-Fm¡rloycr ot'as such infor:nation: (1) is within the p¡5lic domain or comes witliin
tlre publìc dotllain without ilt), þ,'*u"n of thjs Agreenr.ent ot (2) was clenionst¡ably knorvn to Empl.yee
Plior to the disolosure by thc Entployer providcd that the source of such inf'o¡¡ation is ¡roL knowr ïy the
l1mirloyee to h.ave been bourtcl by arry obligation o,l r:onficlentiality or ficlgoiary cluty to the E'rpl'yer,

Thc term "oonfidelrtial infblrnation" inclucles, witlior.rt lirnitation, infrrrmation not previously
disclosed to thc public or to the tracle by Employer's ûtanagernent with respect to Iimptoyer or any
pt'oduots, facilities, tncthocls, trade secrets atrd otber irtellectual ploper'[y, .soltwar<¡, sot¡too co¿c, systerns,
procedures, mahuals, oonficlcrrlial t'epotts, fi.nancial inforrnation, busincss plans, pr.gspect.s or op¡ror{unities
witli respect to bmployel but shall exoluclc any infornraticln alreacly in the pulnic rJcxnain, Ernployee
recoguizes ancl agrees that all copyt'ights, traclct¡rarks, or other intellectual proper-ty lights to c¡catccl wodçs
arising in any way fi'onr Ernployee's employrnenl by Ernployel are the sole ancl exclssiye proper'g of
Ernploycr altcl agrees to uof asser-t auy such lights against Ernployer: or. atly thir.dparties. Úpun
tet'millatjon of'this Agrecnrent by either party fbr any teason, Employcc will relinquish to )1mployer al1
clooutncnts, bÜoks, ntattuals, lists, t'ecords, publications or othel writingso kcys, .r",ljt carcis, eqgipme¡t,
ocrrtrpltter dìslcs, tuid any othcr similar le¡rositorie.s off infbrmation or other. altiolcs that cãmc into
.l;imployee's possession in colrnccl,ion rvith llie employrnent for Employcr ancl [o maintain ¡o copies or
du¡llicates withor¡t th.e r.vlit{.en approval o1'Finployer's ßoald of ii'usiees, Jimployee ngr.ees t¡at, up<.rn thc
tel'mination of his employment lbr iury reasoll, hc will celti:S in w.iting tirat al1 s¡ch clata has bcc'
lctnrncd tr: Employer ancl not retained by Enrployee

7.4 Ârbitrrrtion. Exc.ept as othclwise plovicled hclcin, 'lìmployec 
anct timptoyet agr.ee that

any clispirtcs bctwccn }imployee ancl lÌrn¡lloyer alising out of this Agrccmcui, ç¡ thc brcacht¡erJofi shall
be resolYccl b¡'art irnparfial atbitral-or in t.he State of Nevacln pursuant to the vo¡-rntary labor arbiiration
rules issuecl by the Allcrioan Arbitrati<ln Association in efTect in tlie Strte ol'Nev¿rda at thc clate of. the
dispute, the awalcl renderecl by lhc albitr:atcx shall be conclusive anci bincling upo¡. Employcc ancl
F,mployer, .Liach party shall pay its own expenscs i'or the albitratjon and tlre fèes and **p"nr.,t olì lhc
arbitt'ator shall he sltat'ed equally. Ihis albitLation rec¡uircrnent .sha.ll also apply t6, witho¡t iirnitation, all
olaims that coulcl be bl:ouglrt by lÌrqrloyee at any tirne durin.g or aftcr fhc tó¡1 of this Agr.eenreut uncle'
fcderaì, s|atc and local statutol:y ot' cotlllllorl iaw, inolu<ling: thc Agc Discrìmination in t,)mployrne't 

^ct;Title VII of tlic Civil lì.ìghls Act of 1964 (as amencled); the Anrelicans with Disaliilities Act; the l;air
Labol Stanclarcls Act; thc Farnily Meclical l,eave Act; 1he lirnployc<.: Polyg¡aph protecti¡n Act; the
Limployee Retireuront lncoulo Sccurify Á,ct; thc National ]-atror llelations Act; any stalutcs or common

16(ì999,1.1 1 
o



Iarv rcgaldirtg cmployment tendnatiorr; flny claiuls for wronglul clischarge, wongtul anest cll.
ittt¡rrisottmento ltitLassrncnt 01' discriurination, intedion¿tl or negligelt infliction of cnroli6nal distress,
iuv¿rsion of right of privacy, or: defhmatiorr. lìrnployee expressly aclurowlc<Igcs ancl agrees that,
tlrrough this Sccfion 7,4,hc is rvniviltg his right to a jury trial conccrning thc above claim.s.

7,5 Public Records. Ëmploycc understantfs and agrees that, in light of lJrnployer's status as a
qrrasi-municiPal cotporation, ccrtain rec<lrcls ancÌ/or: in.filrmation pellailring to }ärnployee's ernploy¡rent
rnay neecl to lre pnblicly disclosed. Enrployee aglee.s that Ernployer ntay putrìicly cliso.lose a1y i¡fbrrnatiorr
âs 1ïa!'bc recluirecl by law,

7.6 ('loverning l,nw. All rigtrts and obligntions herenncicl'shall bc govemed ancl constr.necl in
accoLclaltcc r,vith thc laws of the State of Nevada, withoutrefercnoç fo coilfljsts of lawpritrciplcs.

7.'l Failure fu l¡inforce. 'ihe failure to enfbrce at any tirne any of the provisions of thís
Àgreeutent ot' to t'ccluile at any time pell'ormance by the other party of any of tire provisio¡s hclcof shall in
no wÍly be coustnted to be a w¿rivtli'r;f suoh plovisions or to afIèct either the valiclity of.this Agreement (or
any patt heleof) or the Ïight of eithçr parly thcrcafler 1a enfÕl'ce each a¡cl evely provisio¡ of this
Agreernent,

7,8 Captions. 'l'he captions conlainecl in tliis Agrccmelrt arc 1i¡' convcnience only ancl are not
inlcnclcd to lirnit nt'del'ine the sccrpe or eflbct of any provisir:n of this Agrcomcnt.

7-9 Counterparts. 'l-his z\greentent may be executed in any nurnbel of oountcrparls an<1 each
such coutrterpart shal1 bc dcenied tr: be an otiginrtl, but a1l of u'hich, whentake¡ togetlicL,,r:hall co¡stiûlte
one Agteenient,

7'10 Severability. If any provi.sicttt of this Agreement is helcl to be invalid or unenltrrceable by
any .iudgrneltt or decision of an administrative, arhitral ol ju<licial trìbunal, coult oï other body of a
contpetent juriscliction, the rentainder o1 this Agleerncnf shall not be affccted by s¡ch judg¡rent or.
dccision, ancl ths Agt'cement shall be carried out as nearly as possiblo accorcling lo its crther prnviiions arrcl
intont.

7.ll lintirc Agreetrtent. llhis Agreement contains the entiro unclelstallcling bctween Ïìmpl<lyee
aucl Eurploycl with rcsircct to the sutrject matter of this Agreernent ancl it supcrsc<lcs an¡, prior ôral or
wlitten agl'eeüLents atrcl tlndel'standings bctwecn thcm. 'I'his A.gteement may be nroclified oniy in writing
signecl by limployee ancl an authorized leplcscntativc of lîmployer,

7,tZ I'resrtmpfion. Tliis Agreentenl or any section thereof shall not be constn¡ecl agai¡st any
larty clue to the fact that said z\greeurent or any scction theroof r,vas drafte<i iry saicl party,

7.'13 Sepnrntc Counsel, Iìach party has t'eceived the ìnclcpcndcnt aclvice of its attorney pr.ior to
thc execution clf this Agtceutcnt. it is unclerstood ancl agleed that ttr* undcrsignecl have nåt been
itlflucnced to any extcnt wliafsocvet in rnaking this Agreement by any replesentative, agcnt or ellpjoyee
of ari aclverse party, or iry any attorney, pol'.son or persons tepresentfurg or ernployeci by the undcrsigncd,
ancl that this ^A.greemeff is entelccl into ficcly, voluntarily and lcnowingly.

CI

f 609q943. I



IN WIïINI{SS \ryIlIIllt{IilOI{, the parties have executecì this A.greement efTective as of
^*_,2,020,

. l.-(

_-¿..--.-.._ _..,,. ... ..

"IllMPf ,OYDR'l

RENO.TAHOE AIRPORT ATiTI"IORITY

llv:
J

I'.TÙ.l\irPI,OYEIT'' l

¿_."":rr, 
, ito/

.By:

l)aren Clillin

- 1û -
l {;099943. 1



EXHIBIT A

PTTESIDTNNT' & CH ItrF IIXECTiTIVII OFFI T]EIT - KIIY ItÏ SI}ON SI I}ILTTIITS
Uncler general clirectitirr of ths Boar.cl <.¡.f 'l'r'r¡stees, the Presiclent & Chief:Executive Officer is r:csponsihle
fÌlr plamirig,-organizing,.clircoting and contmllirrg atl ñrnctions and aclivities of'thc tr.vo-airpor.t systep
opct'atecl by ûre Rcno-'I'alroo Airport Authority, Major rcsponsibilities, by categoly, inclucfc:

Air ¡;rt r I Op er a I i o tt,s, S e c m'i 4t, qncl Aíai n t en qn c e

' Monitot's airpot't operations atrd taìces action to enforoc fbclclal, .statc and local rules ancl
legulzrtitxrs governing airpolt use anrl opelatiurs,

' I"acilitates the provision off air: tlansportation servioes to meet the clernancls of tþe ale¿r
within the erlít'omneutal constrairrts oI'the community f'or less noise.

' Coordinatcs ground-olrerating tegulatiorrs, r'unwây use and rnaÌntenance with Fcilcral
Aviatjon ArlmÏriistr¿rtìon (FAA) tlaffìc controllers to rnaintain a saf'c o¡relational clim.atc.

' lÌ,nstrre.s the Âirport.Erngrgelcy Plan (AEP) is cornplo{c ancl teviewecl regnlarly arrd meets the
reqltilement to provide fbr the safety of the erltrrlrrycos ancl the traveling putrlid,

Finance & Adminisfi'nti on

' I)irects stafT in.various aspcots ol' buclget development f.ol the olgarrization inclu<ling
establishing policies, tccr¡mmending hu<lgets, establishing contlol systerns re.lativc tõ buclget
l1]¿ìll¿1genr{nl within each clcpaltment, and keeping mallagcment staffand Boarcl ol'Trusteè.s
itú-ormed of financiai status on a regular: basis.

' Maintains a selÊsupportìng or sutplus rcvcnrìe status by applying goocl bnsine.ss
managemeltt plocedru'es.

1''Ianning, Constrt.rcIion qnd Etutit"onmentul

' Parl.iciPates.in the long aticl sholt-range plruuing of aiqrort facilities by pr:eclicting aviatiou
ncccls in orclel: to f'crmr.llafe recotnmencl¿rliolrs I'ol urajor: expzursion progiam.s an<1-
implcivenrents of the ai4rort.

' f)efines, clelivers, ¿rnd ovorsccs thc irnplcmcntation of aitlrort plans to ensril'e the safÞ, secuïe,
aud elTicient clevelopmenl oL o¡:elations, zurcl maintcnance ofltlic airport and relatecl facilities,

' Enfot'ocs Feclelaf , Sl.ate, ancl local ruLcs anct regulations governing airlror'l usc outsicle the area
of atrthority of lhe liecleral Aviation Aclmillistlation (FAA) url<l recouilrentls ol pronulgatcs
moclifioations in existing mles.

" Assists in the clevclolrment of policies, pi'ocedures, arrd st¿¡nclarci.s fur'the Airyort Authority.

' Iurlrlemetús trew concepts ancl innovations to implove airport operations,

' Directs tr conducts special .sturlics aud reports, proviclûrg reconunendations ancl
subs tan tj vo in folmati on ttr. policy arrd cl ecision-malcirrg,

C o m trutn i c t t l: i o n.ç <*. C o m m un i lyt / (1 ot, e r n m e nt Re I s t i o n s

' üstablishes ancl f'osters liaisori witlr irW oonstifucnt gl'oups to cn$ure that the.Airport ^4.uthority's
interests are c<¡orlfurated wilh those ol'l'elevant stahchoiclcts. Replesent.s the Ï{erio-'.1.'alroe Affirt
Authority iu the conrnrunity. the inclusLr'y and in grrvcl'nrnental mcctíngs.

tó099943. I






	09-19-2024 Board Agenda_19th
	08-08-2024 Board MINUTES-draft
	09-2024 CEO Report
	#51 Revised Committee Assignments_Bd Memo
	#49 AARF Truck Change Order_Bd Memo
	#50 Interlocal Agreement_Bd Memo
	#50 Interlocal Agreement_Ex
	INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE SERVICES
	BETWEEN
	CITY OF RENO RENO TAHOE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
	ATTEST:
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	#48 Barich_Bd Memo
	#52 CEO Goals_Bd Memo
	#52 CEO Goals_ExA Goals
	#52 CEO Goals_ExB Emp Contract and Ext
	09-14-2023 #65 CEO Goals_ExB1-Employment Contract
	09-14-2023 #65 CEO Goals_ExB2-Contract Extension


